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Vision

CORPORATE VISION, MISSION & STRATEGY

To be a Company that continuously enhances its superior technological competence
amongst the most efficient and lowest cost procedures in the industry;

Through enhancing quality of life and contributing to have a healthier future, We aim to
deliver sustainable, industry - leading financial performance and earn trust;

The company aims to produce high quality diversified finished goods at competitive
price and to ensure a safe, melodic and challenging working environment for the
employees.

Mission

The Company should ensure a secure & rewarding investment to the shareholders and
investors, quality products to its customers, a secure, harmonious and friendly
environment to its employees and be a ethical partner with its stakeholders;

To be a leader in the market, a world class organization by providing competitive quality
products and superior services to our customers, while learning from their high
standard oriented feedback for our products;

Improve on contemporary measures including cost, quality, service, speed of delivery
and mobilization by optimizing the long term returns and growth of the business.

Strategy

To be a Company that attracts and retains outstanding people by creating a fosters
openness and cultural innovations that promotes individual growth and reward oriented
performances;

To produce a high quality white crystalline sugar by using of highest international
standards;

To grow our base business in sugar and build those related activities where there is
opportunity to smooth the impact of sugar price cycles;

To offer an equal and fair growth opportunities to all employees;

Ensure to make investments on sugarcane growers in order to have regular supply of
profitable sugarcane, in addition to establish a high standard corporate sugarcane
farming;

We provide care through empathy, fairness, trust and support for community in which
we exist. We always are conscious for the impact of our activities on our surrounded
environment.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that thirty three Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the
Company will be held on Friday August 05, 2022 at 10:00 A.M. at Chandni Banquet Halls
43-N, Gulberg-111, Lahore to transact the following business:

7 To confirm the minutes of Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
February 27, 2021.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended September 30, 2021 together with Directors' and Auditors' Reports
thereon.

3. To appoint Auditors for the year 2021-2022 and fix their remuneration. The present

Auditors M/s UHY Hassan Naeem & Co. Chartered Accountants, retire and being
eligible have offered themselves for reappointment.

4. To transact any other ordinary business with the permission of the Chair.
Lahore: July 13,2022, By order of the Board
Ahmad Jehanzeb Khan

Company Secretary
NOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 29-07-2022 to
05-08-2022 (both days inclusive) for entitlement, attending and voting at Annual
General Meeting. Physical Transfers/CDS Transactions 1DS received in order in all
respects at the close of the Business on 28-07-2022 at the Company’s Share
Registrar M/s Corplink (Pvt) Ltd, Wing Arcade, 1-K Commercial Area Model Town
Lahore attending of the meeting.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member
as proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf, Forms of Proxy to be valid must be
properly fitted in/executed and received at the Registered Office of the Company at
66-L, Gulberg-11, Lahore, at least 48 hours before the time of this meeting.

3. Members are requested to provide by mail or email, photocopy of their CNIC and
their email address to enable the Company to comply with the relevant laws.

4. In accordance with the provision of Section 242 of the Act, it is mandatory for a
listed company to pay cash dividend to shareholders only through electronic mode
directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. In order to

()
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receive dividends directly into bank account, members are requested to complete
the particulars in e-Credit Dividend Mandate Form.

. Members are advised to ensure that they have provided valid Zakat declaration
under Zakat & Usher Ordinance, 1980 (for Zakat exemption) to their respective
Participant/CDC Investor Account Services/Company’s Share Registrar.

. Members holing shares in physical form are encouraged to convert their physical
shares into Book Entry Form (CDC) pursuant to the requirements of Section 72 of
the Act.

. The financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended on September
30, 2021 will also be up-loaded on Company's website.

. Members are advised to promptly notify change in their postal address, if any, to the
Company's Share Registrar.
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REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN

It gives me immense pleasure to present this report to the Shareholders of M/s.
Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited pertaining to the overall performance of the Board and
the effectiveness of its role in attaining the Company's aims and objectives.

The Company complies with all the requirements set out in the Companies Act, 2017
(“the Act”) and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019 ("Regulations”) with respect to the composition, procedures and meetings of the
Board of Directors and its committees. As required under Regulations, an annual
evaluation of the Board of the Directors (“the Board”) of the Company is carried out.

The Company has implemented a strong governance framework supportive of an
effective and prudent management of business matters, which is regarded as
instrumental in achieving long-term success of the company. During the year, the Board
Committees continued to work with a great measure of proficiency. The Board as a
whole has reviewed the Annual Report and Financial Statements, and is pleased to
confirm that in its view the report and financial statements, taken as a whole, are fair,
balanced, and understandable.

The Board carries out a review of its effectiveness and performance each year on a
self-assessment basis. The Board Performance assessment for the year was based on
an evaluation of the integral components i.e. Strategic Planning, Board Composition,
Board Committees, Board Procedures, Board Interactions, Board and CEO's
Compensation, Board Information and Board & CEO's Effectiveness.

The Board of Directors of the company received agendas and supporting written
material including follow up materials in sufficient time prior to the Board and its
Committee meetings. The Board meets frequently enough to adequately discharge its
responsibilities. The Non-Executive and Independent Directors are equally involved in
important decisions. The Board has effectively set the tone at the top, by putting in
place a transparent and robust system of governance.

Ghazi Khan
Chairman

July 13, 2022
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Directors’ Report

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of “The Board of Directors” of the TSML Group, | am pleased to present the
Company's 33" Annual Statutory Report together with the Audited Financial Statements for the
year ended 30" September 2021.

Operating and Financial Highlights:

The sugarcane support price fixed by the government of the Punjab & KPK for the crushing
season 2020-21 touched highest ever levels at Rs 200/40Kg, as against the last seasons
sugarcane support price of Rs190/40Kg. We faced exceptional circumstances from the
beginning of the crushing season 2020-21 as the demand of sugarcane growers also touched
their highest levels ever in the history. The demands of growers, during the season ranged
between Rs 240 to Rs 280 per 40 Kg, depending from area to area.

The crushing season started after the mid of November 2020, as the Government intervened
and forced the sugar mills to start crushing before the intended time frame, when the sucrose
recovery was at the lowest ebb.

The forced start of crushing season 2020-21 badly affected sucrose recoveries at all our sugar
producing units. The averaged combined recovery for the season was at 8.88%, as compared
to 9.33% during the corresponding year. The company however managed to crush around 25%
more sugarcane as compared to last season due to better management decision to crush
aggressively in order to obtain more indigenous molasses for our distillery division, being a
more viable option. This also increased our sugar production by around 19% in comparison to
the last year.

The Company even under difficult circumstances, was able to achieve good financial results
and managed to earn a profit before tax of Rs 1.033 Billion and an after tax profit to the tune
712 Million, during the year.

Allied Division:

The Ethanol Division of the Company, as always has again contributed tremendously during this
year and with huge exports, we were, for the third calendar year declared as the largest
exporter of ethanol from Pakistan.

Our ENA product is very well acclaimed in international circuit of buyers & is always well
received as a premium product in the international market and appreciably earn more profits.

Apart from our own molasses from the sugar division, the company has this year also procured
large quantities of molasses from outside sources, in order to keep our ethanol division
operational for the whole year.

This year TSML exported US $ 42.885 million (PKR 6.621 Billion) worth ethanol and contributed
towards increase in the foreign exchange reserves of the national exchequer.

In liaison with the Ethanol Division, our Top Gas (CO2) segment also proved to be a true

alliance in company's operations'.
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Season 2021-22 & Future Outlook:

In the current financial year 2021-22, which concluded in the first week of April 2022, the
growers were not willing to supply sugarcane at prices less than Rs 300 per 40 kg, as against
Governments notified support price of Rs 225 per 40 kg, thus making the situation even more
challenging than the year 2020-21, which is under review.

The management of the company is very hopeful that the company would increase its
production & revenue targets and will perform much better in the current year in both sugar &
ethanol revenues, than the year under review.

The distillery division is also expected to perform much better, both in terms of production levels
as well as revenue generation of ethanol exports, due to better prices of ethanol in international
market as well as depreciation of PKR currency.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework:

The Directors are pleased to state that the Company is compliant with the provisions of the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (CCG) as required by
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Following are the statements on Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework;

*  The financial statements present fairly the state of affairs of the Company, the results of its
operations, cash flow and changes in equity;

«  Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained;

+ Accounting policies as stated in the notes to the financial statements have been
consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting estimates are
based on reasonable prudent judgment;

* International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 have been followed in preparation of the financial
statements,

«  The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored,;

+  There are no doubts about the Company’s ability to continue as going concern;

*  There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as
detailed in the listing regulations, except as mentioned in paragraph 18 of the “Statement of
compliance with listed Companies (CCG) regulations, 2019" as Annexed to this report.

« A statement regarding key financial data for the last six years is annexed to this report;

+ Information about taxes and levies is given in the notes to the financial statements;
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+ There is no likelihood of any delayed payments or default in respect of all loans availed by
the Company;

* During the year 8 Board meetings were held. The minutes of the meetings were
appropriately recorded and circulated Attendance was as under:

Niive o Dk Board Audit Committee
Attended | Required Attended | Required
NON - EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Ghazi Khan | 4 4 4 4
Mr. Tahir Faroog Malik 4 4 4 4
Mrs. Rasheeda Begum 3 - 4 4
Mrs. Mobina Akbar Khan 3 4 4 4
Mr. Humayun Akhtar Khan | 4 4 4 4
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Akbar Khan 4 4
Mr. Haroon Khan 4 4 4 4

(However, leaves of absence were granted to the Directors who could not attend the Board
Meetings due to their preoccupations.)

Six Years Review at a Glance

The six years review at a glance is annexed on page 17, herewith in this report.

Pattern of Shareholdings

The pattern of shareholdings as on September 30, 2021 which is required to be disclosed under
the reporting framework is annexed herewith in this report on page 18 as “FORM 34",

Audit Committee

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee consisting of three members including Chairman
of the Committee. The Committee regularly meets as per requirement of the code. The
Committee assists the Board in reviewing internal audit manual and internal audit system.

Human Resource Committee

The Board has constituted a Human Resource and Remuneration Committee in compliance
with the Code of Corporate Governance. The Human Resource Committee is performing its
duties in line with its terms of reference as determined by the Board of Directors.

Nomination Committee

The Board has constituted a Nomination Committee in compliance with the Code of Corporate

Governance.
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Risk Management Committee

The Board has constituted a Risk Management Committee in compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance.

Board Meetings

There have been 8 meetings during the year and the attendance of each director is stated as
above:

Trading in Shares

Trading in shares by Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and their spouses and minor
children has been disclosed in FORM 34 annexed as part of these financial statements to this
annual report.

Outstanding Statutory Dues

Details of outstanding dues towards minimum tax and those relating to other statutory
obligations are set out in note 16 and 32 respectively.

Dividend

No dividend is being recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ended September 30,
2021.

Staff Retirement Benefits

The company operates an un-funded gratuity scheme for all employees with qualifying service
period of six months.

Auditors

The retiring Auditors, M/s UHY Hassan Naeem & Co, Chartered Accountants, being eligible,
offer themselves for appointment for the Statutory External Audit of the year ending September
30, 2022.

Appreciation

The Board acknowledges the continued dedication and efforts of the employees of the
Company.

We also acknowledge the contribution of our growers as they hold key element of our industry
and we thank them for their continued cooperation.

On behalf of Board of Directors

Akbar Khan
(Chief Executive Officer)
July 13, 2022
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SIX YEARS REVIEW AT A GLANCE

Figures in "000

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
(Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees)

Sales (Net) 27,114,404 21,271,885 27295875 17,522,464 13.903,985 18,675,054
Cost of Sales 23,995 409 19,430,945 23,142,769 14,665,516 11,769,616 16,258,134
Gross profit 1,118,995 1,840,940 4,153,106 2,856,948 2,134,369 2,416,920
Operating, financial and
other expenses 2,123,859 1,927,181 2437413 2,031,870 1680412 1,542,640

995,136 (86.241) 1,715,693 825078 453,957 874,280
Other income 87,507 97.730 63,485 79,729 36,246 108,495
Net profit before wppf 1.082.643 11488 1,781,178 904,807 490,203 982,775
Workers™ profit participation fund 49,404 547 160,979 55,596 29077 49,139
Net profit before Taxation 1,033,239 10,941 1,680,199 849,211 461,126 933,636
Provision for taxation {3120.993) (292 666) (234.276) {41.566) 0634 (35.669)
Net profit after taxation T12,246 (281,715) 1,445,923 BO7,6435 470,760 897,967
Cash dividend - - - - - -
Earning per share (Rs.) 6,05 (2.39) 12.28 6.86 4.00 7.63
Authorized capital 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000
Paid-up capital 1,177,063 1.177.063 1,177,063 1.177.063 1,177,063 1,177,063
Fived capital expenditures (Net) 15.880.401 16114373 _ 16100857 _ 15.683,153 13082041 10,686,508
Sugar production - Unit - | M. Tons 95,118 77,182 69,115 57,826 64,44 50,392
Sugar production - Unit - 2 M. Tons 81,679 68,811 105,529 93,139 102,417 76,474
Sugar production - Unit - 3 M. Tons 139 872 119,427 80,731 a4.617 136,284 120,512



TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Annual Report 2021

FORM 34
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
(Section 227(2)(f))
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
1.1 Name of the Company | TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED |
2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at | 30-09-2021 |
----—-Shareholdings--—--
2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
137 1 100 3,930
413 101 500 193,934
60 501 1,000 50,680
53 1,001 5,000 120,099
7 5,001 10,000 47,017
5 10,001 15,000 64,861
3 15,001 20,000 53,607
1 20,001 25,000 21,500
1 25,001 30,000 29,420
1 45,001 50,000 45,500
1 140,001 145,000 144,300
1 550,001 555,000 552,500
2 1,390,001 1,395,000 2,789,689
1 1,395,001 1,400,000 1,395,343
1 1,400,001 1,405,000 1,401,747
1 1,890,001 1,895,000 1,894,064
1 3,290,001 3,295,000 3,294,155
1 5,455,001 5,460,000 5,459,419
1 5,745,001 5,750,000 5,745,514
1 10,610,001 10,615,000 10,610,937
1 20,195,001 20,200,000 20,197,535
1 20,250,001 20,255,000 20,253,274
1 21,575,001 21,580,000 21,575,857
1 21,760,001 21,765,000 21,761,418
696 117,706,300
2.3 Categories of shareholders Share held Percentage
2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 89,380,585 75.9353%

and their spouse and minor children

2.3.2 Associated Companies, -=- -
undertakings and related
parties. (Parent Company)
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2.3.3 Banks Development
Financial Institutions, Non
Banking Financial Institutions.

2.3.4 Shareholders holding 10%
or more

2.3.5 General Public
a. Local

2.3.6 Others (to be specified)

184,589

89,378,563

28,141,126

Annual Report 2021

0.1568%

75.9335%

23.9079%
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
Categories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)
As on September 30, 2021

No. of Shares
Sr. No. Name Held Percentage
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail):
Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail) -
Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):
1 MR. AKBAR KHAN 21,592 481 18.3444%
2 MR. HAROON KHAN 23,163,165  19.6788%
3 MR. GHAZI KHAN 22974900  19.5188%
4 MRS. RASHEEDA BEGUM 21,648,017  18.3916%
5 MRS. MOBINA AKBAR KHAN 1,000 0.0008%
6 MR. HUMAYUN AKHTAR KHAN 522 0.0004%
7 MR. TAHIR FAROOQ MALIK 500 0.0004%
Executives: - -
Public Sector Companies & Corporations: -
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 184,589 0.1568%

Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

S.No. Name Holding Percentag
1 MR. AKBAR KHAN 21,592,481 18.3444%
2 MR. HAROON KHAN 23,163,165  19.6788%
3 MR. GHAZI KHAN 22974900 19.5188%
4 MRS. RASHEEDA BEGUM 21,648,017  18.3916%
5 MR. HAMEED ULLAH KHAN PARACHA 7,639,578 6.4904%

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Executives and their
spouses and minor children shall also be disclosed:

S.No NAME SALE PURCHASE
1 MR. GHAZI KHAN (CDC) - 3,700
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of Company: Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited

Year Ended: 30 September 2021

The statement is presented in compliance of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (herein referred as “The Regulations”) providing a

framework for corporate governance.

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following
manner.

1.  The total number of Directors are seven (07) as per the following:

a) Male: 05
b) Female: 02

2. The composition of the Board is as under:
Category Names

Executive Directors:

Mr. Akbar Khan
Mr. Haroon Khan

Non-Executive Directors:

Male:

Mr. Ghazi Khan

Mr. Tahir Farooq Malik

Mr. Humayun Akhtar Khan
Female:

Mrs. Rasheeda Begum
Mrs. Mobina Akbar Khan

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than
seven listed companies, including this company;

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate
steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its
supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and
significant policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of
particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is
maintained by the company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant
matters have been taken by Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Act and these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence,
by a Director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the
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requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and
circulating minutes of meeting of Board;

8. The Board of Directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for
remuneration of Directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

9. All the Directors on the Board are well conversant with their responsibilities as
Directors of corporate bodies as the Company had arranged briefing for its Directors
to apprise them of their duties and responsibilities. All the Directors of the Company
are exempt from obtaining certification under Directors’ training programs (DTP) per
criteria i-e 14 years of education and 15 years of experience on the board of a listed
company.

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary
and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations. However
no new appointment was made during the year.

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial
statements before approval of the Board.

12. The Board has formed an audit committee. It comprises of following 03 (Three)

Directors :
Name Designation
Mr.  Humayun Akhtar Khan Chairman / Member
Mr. Ghazi Khan Member
Mr. Tahir Farooq Malik Member

The Board has formed a Human Resource and Remuneration committee. It
comprises of following 03 (Three) Directors:

Name Designation

Mr. Humayun Akhtar Khan Chairperson / Member
Mrs. Rasheeda Begum Member

Mr. Tahir Faroog Malik Member

The Board has not constituted a separate “Nomination committee” and “Risk
Management Committee” as the responsibilities of these committees is being taken
care of at the Board level as when required. Therefore, a need for the separate
formation of these committees does not exist.

13. The Terms of Reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed,
documented and advised to the committees for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly / half yearly / yearly) of the committees were as
per following:

a) Audit Committee: 04 meetings held during the year ended on September

30, 2021; and



TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.

15.

16.

17.

18.
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b) HR and Remuneration Committee: 01 meeting held during the year ended
on September 30, 2021.

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function/or has outsourced the
internal audit function to who are considered suitably qualified and experienced
professional for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of
the Company.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed, that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the Institute of
Chartered Accountant of Pakistan (“ICAP") and registered with Audit Oversight
Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent,
dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the
company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed
to provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or
any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have
observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all requirements of the Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of
the regulations have been complied with; except the following:

a) The Company did not have any Independent Director during the year ended
30 September 2021 as per the requirement of clause (1) of
Section 6 of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019.

b) None of the members (including Chairman) of the Audit Committee is an
Independent Director as per sub-clause (i)&(ii) of clause 1 of Section 27 of
the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019,

¢) None of the members of the Human Resource & remuneration Committee is
an Independent Director as per Section 28(1) of the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

d) The CFO of the Company also holds the position of Company Secretary.

On Behalf of the Board

GHAZ| KHAN
Lahore: July 13, 2022 CHAIRMAN
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Review Report to the Members on Statement of Compliance
with the Code of Corporate Governance

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the
Board of Directors of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited (“the Company”) for the
year ended September 30, 2021 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36
of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of
Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of
Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of
the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with
the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company
to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the
audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider
whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and
controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors
for their review and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure
compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017.We are
only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to
assess and determine the Company’s process for identification of related parties and
that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or
not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s
compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the
Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended September 30, 2021.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of
the Regulations as reflected in the paragraph reference where it is stated in the

Statement of Compliance:
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Paragraph reference Description

i) Paragraph 18 (a) At present there is no independent director on the
Company’s Board of Directors as required under the clause
(1) of Section 6 of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019.

ii) Paragraph 18 (b) Under the sub-clause (i & ii) of clause 1 of Section 27 of the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019, the Audit Committee shall have at least
one independent director who shall preferably be the
chairman of the committee. Since, there is no Independent
Director on the Board, this requirement is not complied
with.

iti) Paragraph 18 (c) Under the clause 1 of Section 28 of the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, the
Human Resource and Remuneration Committee shall have
at least one independent director. Since, there is no
Independent Director on the Board, this requirement is not
complied with.

fv) Paragraph 18 (d) The Chief Financial Officer of the Company also holds the
position of Company Secretary.

UHY Hassan Naeem & Co
Chartered Accountant
Lahore: July 13, 2022 (Mr. Ibne Hassan)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited (the Company),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at September 30, 2021, and the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and

explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair
view of the state of the Company's affairs as at September 30, 2021 and of the profit and other
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan, Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters:

Sr. No. | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

1 Revenue recognition Our audit procedures to assess recognition of

sales, amongst others, included the following:
Refer to the statement of profit or loss and

note 412 and 25 to the financial | Obtained an understanding of the process
statements, relating to recording of revenue,

o assessed the appropriateness of the




TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD. IR IIEIEE

Sr. No. | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
The Company generates revenue from sale Company’s accounting policies for revenue
of sugar and its by-products to both local recognition and compliance of those policies
and export customers. with applicable accounting standards;

e compared, on a sample basis, specific

We identified recognition of revenue as a revenue transactions recorded just before

key audit matter because revenue is one of and just after the financial year end date to
the key performance indicators of the determine whether the revenue had been
Company and gives rise to an inherent risk recognized in the appropriate financial
of misstatement to meet expectations or period;

targets.  performed scanning analytics to identify

any manual journal entries relating to sales
during the year which were considered to
be material or met other specific risk-based
criteria for inspecting underlying
documentation;

» performed test of details over a sample of
revenue transactions recorded during the
year with sale orders, sales invoices,
delivery Challan and other relevant
undertaking documents;

* reconciled the sales recorded and sales tax
paid thereto with the amounts reported in
sales tax returns; and

e assessed the adequacy of disclosures in
financial statements with respect to revenue.

2 Borrowings and finance cost Qur audit procedures, amongst others,

included the following:
Refer notes 4.16, 8, 9, and 30 to the
financial statements. » assessed the internal controls over recording
the terms and conditions of borrowings

The Company has obtained a range of from financial institutions, including their

financing facilities from various financial classification as other current or non-current
institutions with varying terms and tenure and associated cost:

against collaterals of stocks and plant & |4 obtained confirmations of borrowings as at
machinery. September 30, 2021 directly form the

financial institutions;

Further, compliance with debt covenants is .
P e re-calculated the mark-up recognized as

a key requirement of these financing g

expense during the year to assess whether
AITREEES: these were accounted for in accordance with
approved accounting standard as applicable
in Pakistan;

e assessed whether installments of

loans/leases due or loans/leases maturing

€
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Sr. No. | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
within twelve months were classified as
current liabilities; and

» performed substantive procedures to verify
the mark-up and principal repayment
during the year; and

e assessed the adequacy of Company ‘s
compliance with loan covenants and
disclosures in financial statements.

3 Existence and valuation of stock-in-trade Our audit procedures, amongst others,
included the following;:
Refer notes 4.7 and 21 to the financial
statements. * assessed the appropriateness & consistency
of Company’s accounting policy for
The stock-in-trade balances constitutes valuation of stock-in-trade and compliance
22.78% of total assets of the Company. The of the policy with the requirements of the
cost of finished goods is determined at cost prevailing accounting standards;
including of proportions of production | gbtained an understanding of internal
overheads; controls over valuation of stock-in-trade and
- ; : % performed test of control on a sample basis,
e Company’s policy is to value stock-in- : " <
¢ Lompany’s policy 18 - to test their operating effectiveness;
trade at lower of cost and net realizable ¢
) ) * performed substantive procedures over
value. I'he stock-in-trade  wvaluation R ~ R
: . g et T purchases and consumptions;
nvolves nanagemen me i ;
;V t. ) "l GEm i H 1’. t5iad = re-calculated the value of stock-in-trade by
e 24 > = 515. w o -
etermining the appropriate costing basis allocating the fixed and variable overheads
n . . . and reviewed the adequacy of costing
Additionally, entity holds its stock-in-trade T VA .. Soaquary = HERES
. ; y methodology;
as a collateral against the financing on . y 4
: 2 c d t-of :
account of which there is persistent v R e Pmce‘imfﬁ e
. . subsequent stock count to validate the
inherent risk, . .
completeness and existence of closing stock;
Thus, on account of the significance of |*® assessed reasonableness of management’s
stock-in-trade, complexity in re-calculation determination of net realizable value (NRV)
and involvement of significant and the key estimates adopted and
management  judgement/estimation  in compared, on sample basis, the cost of
application of the costing methodology; we stock-in-trade with their respective net
consider this to be a key audit matter. realizable values (NRV);

e assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the
financial statements to be in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards.

4 Deferred Tax Our audit procedures, amongst others,
Refer to note 10.2 to the Financial | included the following:
Statements.
s obtained computation of current tax and
A deferred tax asset shall be recognized on reconciled the amounts with relevant tax

Annual Report 2021
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Sr. No.

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

the amount of tax losses, if any, along with
the requirements of IAS 12. However, such
recognition involves management
judgement regarding estimation of future

profits of the Company.

As at 30 September 2021, the Company
estimated that
should not be recognized as sufficient

the unused tax losses
taxable profits are not expected against
which the Company can use benefits
therefrom. Management is of the view that
recognition of deferred tax asset shall be

re-assessed on 30 September, 2022,

correspondence and underlying accounting
records;

re-calculated the deferred tax and evaluated
the same in accordance the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS);

obtained the financial
management as approved by the Board of

projections  from
Directors and reviewed management’s
estimates and assumptions in support of the
projections for rationality and achievability;
and

assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the

financial statements to be in accordance

with the applicable accounting standards.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report for the year ended September 30, 2021, but does not include the financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of

this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements
of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment

and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters

that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the
notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and
are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the

purpose of the Company’s business; and
d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance ,1980 (XVIII of 1980)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. Ibne Hassan.

Place: Lahore UHY Hassan Naeem & Co.
Date: July 13, 2022 Chartered Accountants
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Statement of Financial Position

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized share capital

120,000,000 (September 2020: 120,000,000) ordinary shares of

Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capiral
Share premium

Un-approprated profits

Loan from sponsors - snsecired

TOTAL EQUITY

LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term finances - seewred

Lease liability

Deferred habilities

Deferred income - Government grant

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Shott term borrowings - seeured

Current portion of non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Mark-up accrued

Provision for taxation

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Naote

iy

6

10
11

12
13
e
15
16

17

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
1,200,000,000 1,200,000,000
1,177,063,000 1,177,063,000
290,741,640 290,741,640
5,458,558,557 4.743.215,795
3,635,214,057 3,635,214,057
10,561,577,254 9,846,234 492
1,236,921,131 1,981,759.137
237,400,367 435,691,325
657,248,153 564,706,862
822,248

2,132,391,899 2,982,157,324
8,758,069,179 6,160,656,056
1,475,925,325 985,679,431
4,002,580,744 2,708,079,894
237,684,069 138,423,497
321,862,481 576,625,525
14,796,121,798 10,569,464,403
27,490,090,951 23,397,856,219

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements

Lahore
July 13, 2022

Chief Financial Officer
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As at September 30, 2021

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment

Long term deposits

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spare parts and loose tools
Stock-in-trade

Trade debts - considered good
Advances, deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Tax refunds due from Government

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

Chief Executive

_'\-GJ'F

18
19

20

—

b R
[

]
Y

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees
15,935,896,090 16,168,944,779
174,653,829 224,370,919
16,110,549,919 16,393,315,698
1,124,652,184 1,099,256,719
6,260,943,955 2,384,437,294
14,243,716 5,808,788
3,488,447,950 2,371,757,797
389,504,748 859,595,298
101,748,479 283,684,625
11,379,541,032 7,004,540,521

23,397.856,219

Director
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Sales - wet
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administrative expenses

Distribution expenses

Other income

Profit from operations

Finance cost

Other expenses

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit / (loss) after taxation

Annual Report 2021

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended September 30, 2021

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements

Lahore
July 13, 2022

Chief Financial Officer

2021 2020
Nt Rupees Rupees
25 27,114,404,208 21,271,884.733
26 (23,995,408,711)  (19,430,945,446)
3,118,995,497 1,540,939 287
27 (546,115,160) (532,383,857)
28 (322,550,055) (313,627,765)
29 87,506,695 97,729,521
2,337,836,977 1,092,657,186
3 (1,241,879,615) (1,064,327,349)
3 (62,718,506) (17,388,612
1,033,238,856 100,941,225
32 (320,993,120) (292,666,471)
712,245,736 281,725,246
33 6.05 (2.39)
Chief Executive Director
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Annual Report 2021

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended September 30, 2021

Profit / (loss) after taxation
Other comprehensive income
trems that will not be reclassified w profic or loss:

Gain on remeasurement of defined benefit Labiliny

Related tax impact

Total comprehensive income /(loss) for the year

The annexed notes | to 44 form an integral part of these financial starements

Lahore
July 13, 2022 Chief Financial Officer

2021 2020
Nede Rupees Rupees
712,245,736 (281,725 246)
10.1.2 3,966,387 46,857,287
(869,361) (10,139,823)
3,007,026 36,717,464
715,342,762 (245,007,782)
Chief Executive Director
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended September 30, 2021

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
Cash flows f » 5 2
Profit before tmxaton 1,033,238 856 10,941,225
AdFustmenis for nom-carh and wther itews:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (AN §29,724,196 523,247 949
{Gain) / loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 18.1.2 (66,398) Wit 495
Finance cost in 1,241,879,615 1.064,327,349
Provision for staff retirement benefies .13 101,239,616 107,553,669
Profit on saving accounts 29 (9,571,517) {H2,164,754)
Grant income 1 (23,203,871) .
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 14.2 49,460,109 546,800
2,189,461,750 1,934,417 481

Operating profit before working capital changes 3,222,700,606 1,945, 358,706
(Tiscrease) ¢ decroase in corvens asrets:
Stares, spare parts and loose tools (25,395,465) (37,171,691)
Stock-in-trade {3,876,506,661) 637 515,183
Advances, deposirts, prepayments and other receivables (1,116,690,153) (355,011 6200
Trade debs - mngidened good (8,434,928) 308,950,672

(5,027,027,207) 534,572,544
Imerease | (doeredse) in cxrvent Gabifities
Trade and other pavables 1,245,040,741 {578, 704,7T85)
Cash (used in) / generated from operations (559,285,860) 1,901,226,465
Finance cost paid (1,119,415,172) (1,172,280,957)
Seaff resirernent benefie paid 1017 (4,731,938) (4,426,502)
Taxes paid (106,534,975) (76,887 ,804)
Workers' Profit Pasticipation Fund paicl 4.2 - (88,431,507)

(1,230,682,085) (1,342,026,770)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (1,789,967,945) 559,199,695
Cazh flows from investing sctivities
Capital expenditure (596,711,833) (583,190,353)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 18.1.2 102,724 62,78
Long term deposits 49,717,090 (141,941 633)
Income recetved from bank deposits 9,571,517 62,164,784
Net cash used in investing activities (537,320,502) (662,904.414)
Conh Aows & i y _
Long term finances repaid (610,480,472) (792,932,098
Long rerm finances obtiined 363,745,275 541,137,523
Loan from SPORSOTS - 94,163 887
Lease liabilines - mar (205,325,625) [27H,576,748)
Short term borrowings - el 2,597,413,123 647,382,739
Net cash generated from financing activities 2,145,352,301 210,175,343
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (181,936,146) 107 470,584
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 184,182,470 76,711,886
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4 2,246,324 184,182,470
The annexed notes | to 44 form an integral part of these financial seatements
Lahore
July 13,2022 Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD. IR IIEIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeai ended September 30, 2021

1 Corporate and general information
1.1 Reporting entity

Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Limited ("the Company™) was incorporated in Pakistin on November 01, 1988 as a Public Limited
Company. The shares of the Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The principal activity of the Company is
production and sale of white crysealline sugar, ethanol and other relared allied by-products.

The geographical locations and addresses of the Company's business units, inclading production facilitics arc as under :
Head office and registered office ; 66-L, Gulberg -11, Lahore
Unit-1: Kanpwani, Tehsil Tandlianwala, District Faisalabad
Unit-11 : Zamand, Miran, Indus Highway, District Dera Ismail Khan
- Unit-111 : Rehman Hajra, Shah Jamal Road, Distriet Muzaffargarh
1.2 Summary of significant events and transactions in the current reporting period

The Company’s financial position and performance were particularly impacted by the following events and transactions during the

reporting period:
Impact of COVID-19 on the financial statements
The pandemic of COVID-19 that has rapidly spread all scross the wordd has not only endangered human lives but has also
adversely impacted the global economy. During the vear, the Government of the Punjab and Government of Sindh from time to
time announced temporary smart lock downs as a measure to reduce the spread of the COVID-19, However, after implementing all
the necessary Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) to ensure safety of employees, the Company continued to carry out its
operations and has taken all necessary steps to ensure smooth and adequate continuation of its business, Management i3 actively
monitoring the impact of the pandemic on its financial conditon, liquidity, operations, supply chain, and workforce, which at
this point is not considered to be significant.
Morcover, during the year, the Company has availed SBP's refinance scheme for payment of wages and salaries as explained in note
8.6 o these financial statements. Other than above, the management has evaluated and concluded that presentdy this outbreak does
not have any significant impact on the amounts being reported in the Company’s financial statements,

2 Basis of preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

Islamic Fimancial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Instinate of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified

under the Companies Act, 201 7; and
Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Aet, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provision of and directives
issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees (PKR), which is the Company's functional currency. All financial
information presented in Rupees has been rounded off to the nearest of Rupee, unless otherwise stated.
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2.3 Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise stated.

24 Use of judgements and estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to

be reasonable under circumstances, and the results of which form the basis for making judgment abourt carrying value of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and futare periods
if the revision affects both carrent and future periods.

The areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company’s financial statements or where judgment was exercised
in application of accounting policies are as follows:
24.1 Employees’ retirement benefits and other obligations

The Company operates approved unfunded gracuity scheme covering all its full me permanent workers who have completed the
minimum qualifving period of service as defined under the respective scheme. The calculation of the benefit requires assumptions
to be made of future outcomes, the principal ones being in respect of increase in remuneration and the discount rate used to
convert future cash flows to current values. The assumptions used for the plan are determined by an independent actuary on annual
basis,

2.4.2 Taxation

The Company takes into account the current Income Tax Law and the decisions taken by Appellate Authorities. Instances where
the Company’s view differs from the view taken by the income tax department at the assessment stage and where the Company
considers that its views on items of material nature are in accordance with law and the outcome is expected in favour of the
Company, are shown as contingent liabilities.

2.4.5 Provisions and contingencies
The Company reviews the status of all pending lingations and claims against the Company. Based on the judgment and the advice
of the legal advisors for the estmated financial outcome, appropriate disclosure or provision is made. The actual outcome of these
liigations and claims can affect the carrying amounts of the liabilities recognized at the statement of financial position date.

244 Estimated useful lives, residual values and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment on regular basis. Any change in
estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment with a

corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment,
245 Inventories

The Company reviews the inventories for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in estimates in future years might
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of inventories with a corresponding effect on the provision,

2.4.6 Expected Credit Loss (ECL) / loss allowances against trade debts, deposits, advances and other receivables

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual eash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted ar an approximation to the assets” original effective interest

Taee.
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The Company has elected to measure loss allowances for trade debts other than due from ‘Goverament of Pakistan’ using IFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifedme ECLs, The financial assets due from Government of Pakistan
continues to be measured under IAS-39 due to the exemption given by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide
S.R.O. 985 (T)/2019 dated 02 Seprember 2019. The Company has established a provision marrix that is based on the Company’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. When
determining whether the credit risk of 4 financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating
ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quansitative and qualitatve information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and
informed credit assessment including forward-looking information.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual petiod over which the Company is exposed o
credit risk. Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the

ASSCLS,

The Company reviews the recoverability of s trade debts, deposits, advances and other receivables w assess amount of loss
allowances required there against on an annual basis.

3 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

The accounting policies and the methods of computation adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are same as those
applied in the preparation of the financial statements for the year ended Seprember 30, 2020 except for the adoption of new
standards effective as of October (1, 2020 as stated below in 3.1,

3.1 Change in significant accounting policy

IFRS 16 replaces the previous lease standard IAS 17 Leases. It resulted in almost all leases being recognized in the statement of
financial posidon, as the distinction berween operating and finance leases has now been eliminated 1oz the lessee. Under the new
standard, an asset and a lease Hability to pay reatals are required to be recognized. The only exceptions are short term and low value leases,

Impact of Adoption

The Company has adopted IFRS 16 and it has no material impact on the Company's financial position as previously recognized
leases were already classified under finance lease arrangements.

3.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective:

The following International Financial Repotting Standards (IFRS) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments
and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 20200

Standards or Interpretation 'Effective date

1AS-37 -Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets — Amendments regarding the costs o January 1, 2022

include when assessing whether a contract is oncrous,

IFRS-3 - Business Combination- (Amendments) January 1, 2022
IFRS-4 - Interest rate benchmark reforms - (Amendments) January 1, 2023
IFRS-16 - COVID-19- related rent concession -(Amendments) January 1, 2022
IFRS-9 - Presentation of financial statements- (Amendments) January 1, 2022

- Consolidated Financial Statements’ and 1AS 28 - Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures  January 1, 2022
IFRS-10  (Amendment regarding sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
Joint Venture.)

IFRS-15 - Definition of business - (Amendments) January 1, 2022
IFRS-16 - Definition of material - (Amendments) July 1, 2021
4 Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated,
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4.1 Seaff retirement benefits

The Company operates an un-funded gratuity scheme covering all cligible employees completing the minimum qualifying period of
service as specified by the scheme. Annual provision is made on the basis of actarial valvation to cover obligations under the
scheme for all employees eligible to gratuity benefits respective of the qualifying period, The projected unir credit method used for
the valuation of the scheme is based on assumptions stated in note 10,1,

Past-scrvice costs are recognized immediately in profit and loss account, unless the changes to the plan are conditional on the
employees remaining in service for a specified period of time (the vesting period). In this case, the past service costs are amortized
on a straight-line basis over the vesting peniod.

The Company’s obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in the current and prior periads, discounting that amount, The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed
annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unir eredit method,

Remeasurement of the defined benefic liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, is recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income. The Company determines the interest expense on the defined benefit lability for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual peniod o the defined benefic Tiabulity,
taking into account any changes 1 the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of benefit payments. Interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plan are recognized in profit and loss account.

4.2 Taxation

Income 1ax expense comprises current and deferred tax, It is recognized in profit or loss account except to the extent that it relates
o items recognized direcdy in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in equiry.
Current tax

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year derermined in accordance with the prevailing law for taxation
of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or 1ax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year
if enacted after taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions, if any, The charpe for current tax also includes adjusements,
where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years ansing from assessments framed during the vear for such

vears. Under / over paid amounts of current tax are recorded as tax refundable / pavable due from / to the Government,
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized using balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences berween the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is
based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrving amount of assess and labilivies, using the enacted or
substantively enacted rates of taxation. In this regard, the effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income expected to be
subject to final tax regime i adjusted in accordance with the requirements of Aceounting Technical Release — 27 of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized o the extent chat
it 1s probable that taxable profir shall be avalable against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax
credits can be unlized,

Deferred tax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected o apply to the peniod when the asset 1s realized or

the liability is setled, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or subswantvely enacted by the statement of financial position
date,

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss, except in the case of items credited or charged to
comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is included in other comprehensive income or equiry.

4.3 TIjarah contracts

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor, are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases are charged to profic or loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease / Harah rerm
unless another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the Company’s benefit,

4.4 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for rade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration 10 be paid in future for goods

and services received,
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45

4.6

4.7

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment include owned, right of use assets and capital work in progress.
Owned

Property, plant and equipment, excepr frechold land are stared at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment
loss. Freehold land and capital work in progress are stated at cost less any idenufied impairment loss, Cost includes direct cost and
related overheads, interest and borrowing cost including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade
discounts and rebares and other costs directly auributable o the acquisiion or construction including expenditures on marerial,
labour and overheads directly relating to construction, erection and installation of operating fixed assers.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable thar furure economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably, Major renewals and improvements are capitalized. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged o profie or loss
account duning the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is charged on a systematic basis over the useful life of the assers, on reducing balance method, which reflects the
patterns in which the economic benefits are consumed by the Company, at the rates specified in note 181,

Depreciation on additions is charged from the month the asset is avaitable for use while no depreciation is charged in the month in
which the assct is disposed off. Depreciation methods, residual values and uscful lives of asscts are reviewed at cach financial year
end and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

The management of the Company reviews carrying amounts of its assets and cash generating units for possible impairment, If such
indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable
amounts. Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amounts, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and
the resulting impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss account. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods
to allocate the asset’s revised carrving amount over its estimated useful life,

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset, represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, is recognized as an income or expense In profit or loss account,

Right-of-use assers

Assets held under lease arrangements are initially recorded at the lower of present value of minimum lease payments under the lease
agreements and the fair value of the leased assets. Depreciation on leased assets is charged by applying reducing balance method at
the rates used for similar owned assers, so as to depreciate the assets over their estimated useful lives in view of cerminty of
ownership of assets at end of the lease term.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital wotk in progress is stated at cost less identified impairment loss, if any, Cost includes the expenditures on matenal, labousr,
appropriate directly artnburable overheads and includes borrowing cost in respect of qualifving assers as stated in note 4.16. These
costs are transferred to operating fixed assets as and when assets are available for their intended use,

Stores, spare parts and loose 1ools

Usable stores and spare parts are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value, while irems considered obsolete
are carried at nil value. ltems in transic are valued ac cost comprising invoice value plus other directly ateributable charges paid

thereon up-to the balance sheet date, Provision is made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow moving stores, spare and
loose tools based on management's estimate as a result of changes in usage pattern and physical form.

Stock-in-trade

These are valued at the lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value except for stock in transit, which is valued ar cost
comprising invoice value and related expenses incurred thereon up to the balance sheet date.

Cost is determined as follows:

Raw marerial at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value
Finished goods at fower of weighted average cost and net realizable valoe
By products net realizable value

Net realizable value significs the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and

costs necessary to be incurred in order to make a sale.
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4.8 Financial instruments

4.8.1

4.8.2

Recognition and initial measurement
All financial assets and financial liabilities are initally recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contracrual

provisions of the instruments,

A financial asset {unless it is a trade debt without a significant financing component) or financial liability i< mitially measured
at fair value plus, for an item aot at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly awdbutable to its acquisition or issue. A trade
debr without a significant financing component is initially measured at the ransaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On inital recognition, a financial asser is classified as measured ar Amortzed cost, Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVOCI), Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) and in case of an equity instrument it is
classificd as FYOCI or FVTPL.,

Amortized cost

A financial asset 1s measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and 1s not designared as at
FVTPL:
it is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets o collect contractual cash flows; and

its contracrual terms give nise on specified dates o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
prineipal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced
by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains / losses and impairment losses are recognized in statement of
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in statement of profit ot loss,

Financial assets measured at amortized cost comprise of cash and bank balances, long term deposits, trade debts, advance,
deposits, prepayments and other receivables.

Debt instrument - FYOCI

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCT if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
These assers are subsequently measured ar fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment losses are recognized in statement of profic or loss. Orher ner gains and losses are
recognized in OCL On de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to starement of profit or loss,
However, the Company has no such instrument at the reporting date.

Equity instrument - FVOCI
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for rading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present
subscquent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCL This clection is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

These assers are subsequently measured ar fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in starement of profit or loss
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognized in OCI and these investments are never reclassified w profit or loss. However, the Company has no such
instrument at the reporting date.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified and measured at amoruzed cost or FVQICI, as deseribed above, are measured at FVTPL.
On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be
measured at amortized cost or at FVOCT as at FVTPL if doing so ¢liminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch
that would otherwise anse.

These assets are subsequently measured ar fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, arc
recognized in statement of profit or loss, However, the Company has no such instrument at the teporting date,
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Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it
is classified as held-for-trading, it is a detivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL
are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in statement of profit or
loss, Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, while the
interest expense and foreipn exchange gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognized in staement of profit or loss,

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables, long term finances, liabilities against assets subject to
finance lease, short term borrowings and accrued mark-up.

4.8.3 Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or
it transfers the nghts to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company might enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recogmized in its statement of financial position but
retains cither all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, In these cases the transterred assets are
not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire, The
Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash Aows of the modified liability are
substantially different, in which case a new financial hability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. On
derecogniion of a financial liability, the difference berween the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid
(including any non-cash assets transferred or labilities assumed) is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

4.8.4 Trade debts, deposits and other receivables

Trade debrs are stated initially at the fair valug, subsequent to inital recognition. These are stated at their amortized cost as
reduced by appropriate provision for impairment, known impaired receivables are written off, while reecivables considered
doubtful are fully provided for.

The impairment for doubtful accounts is based on the Company’s assessment the collectability of counterparty accounts. The
Company regularly reviews its trade debts that remain outstanding past their applicable payment teems and establishes
allowance and potental write-offs by considening facts such as historical experience, credit quality, age of the accounts
receivable balances and carrent economic conditions that may affect customer's ability to pay.

4.9 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position only when the
Company has a legally enforceable righe to set off the recognized amounts and intends to cither settle on a net basis or realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

410 Impairment
Non-Financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at cach
reporting date 1o determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asser’s recoverable
amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 10 the asset or cash

enerating unit.
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An impairment loss is recognized if the carrving amount of the assets or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash generating
units are allocated to reduce the carrving amounts of the assets in a unit on a pro rata basis. Impairment losses recognized in prior
periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased of no longer exises. An impairment loss s
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impatrment loss is reversed only
to that extent that the asset’s carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

4.11 Cash
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows comprise cash in hand, ranning finance and cash at banks,
4.12 Revenue recognition

According to the core principle of IFRS 15, the Company recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods and services
to customers in an amount thar reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those good
and services. The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with that core principle by applying the following steps:

- Identify the contract with a customer;
- Identify the performance obligations in the contracy;
- Determine the transaction price;
Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract;
- Recognize revenue when the entty satisfies a performance obligaton.

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of consideration received or recevable and represents amount recetvable for goods supplied.
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the Company satsfies a performance obligation (at a point of time) by transferring
promised goads to customer being when the goods are invoiced and delivered o customers, This criteria of revenue recognition
for its dming and amount is consistent with the previously adopted accounting standard, therefore the management concludes that
the adoption of IFRS 15 does not have impact on the aming and amount of revenue recogninon of the Company.

4.13 Interest income
Interest income is recognized as it accrucs under the effective interest rate method,

4.14 Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration {or an amount of consideration i dug) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract hability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is
due (whichever is earlier), Contract habilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contrace. It also
inchades refund liabilities arising out of customers* nght to claim amounts from the Company on account of contractual delays in
defivery of performance obligations and incentive on target achievements, The Company’s contract labilities compnse advances
from customets,

4.15 Foreign currency translations

Transactions in forcign currencics are initially recorded ar the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of mansactons, Monetary
assers and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the
statement of financial position date. All exchange differences are charged o statement of profic or loss,

4.16 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred excepr to the extent of borrowing costs that
are directly awrbumble to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are
capitalized as part of the cost of the relevant asser,

417 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company bas a present legal or construetive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required o serde the obligation and a reliable estmate of the amount can be made, Provisions
are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimare,

4.18 Related party transactions

The Company enters into transactions with related parties on an arm’s length basis except in circumstances where, subject to
approval of the Board of Directors, it is in the interest of the Company to do so.
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4.19 Dividend

Dividend to Ordinary shareholders is recognized as s deduction from accumulated profit in smtement of changes in equity and as a
liability in the Company’s financial statements in the vear in which the dividends are approved by the Board of Directors or the
Company’s sharcholders as the case may be.

4,20 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders of the Company by weighted average
nuimber of ordinary shares outstanding during the vear.

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS with weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in profit or loss attributable
o ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result from conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary

shares.
4.21 Loan from sponsors

Loan from sponsors is accounted for as per Technical Release 32 "Director's Loan" ("TR 32"} sssued by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan ("ECAP"), on 25 January 2016 which provides specific guidance on Director's loans that are interest free
and repayable ar the discretion of the entity. Loans are accounted for as per clause 3.3,1 of TR 32 which states that “A daw fo am
entity by the divector which &5 agresd to be paid at the discretion of the entity does wot pass the test of fability awd is to be recorded as equity af face valwe.

This is not snbseguently re-measired” .
4.22 Government grants

Government grants relating 1o export support are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that entity will comply with the
conditions attached to it and grant will be recerved.

4.23 Operating profit

Operating profit is the result generated from the continuing principal revenue producing activities of the Company as well as other
income related 1o operating activites, Operating profit excludes finance costs, other expenses and income taxes.

4.24 Segment reporting
Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment is a component of the
Company that engages in business acavioes from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses
that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results are revicwed
regularly by the Chief Executive to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and
for which diserete financial informaton is available,
Segment results that are reported to the Chief Executive include items directly attributable 1o a segment as well as those that are
allocared on a reasonable basis.
The business segments are engaged in providing products or services which are subject to risks and rewards which differ from the
risk and rewards of other segments. Segments reported are sugar, ethanol and top gas & others,

2021 2020
5 Share capital Rupees Rupees
5.1 Authorized share capital
120,000,060 (2020 120,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 1,200,000,000 1, 200,006,000

5.2 lIssued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

117,706,300 (2020: 117,706,300) voting ordinary shares of Re. 10 each fully 1,177,063,000 1,177,063 000
paid in cash

6 Share premium

This reserve can be utilized by the Company only for the purposes specified in Section 81 (2) and 81 (3} of the Companies Act,
2017.

7 Loan from sponsors - unsecured

This represents interest free loan amountng to Rs. 5,635 million (2020: Rs. 3,635 million] obrained from the sponsors of the
Company and is repayable at the discretion of the Company,
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; 2021 2020
Nt
Rupees Rupees
- 22,466,545
8.1 39,801,604 57,491,200
39,801,604 70,057,745
82 1,629,374,995 1,925,624,997
83 300,000,000
8.4 188,571,434 295,000,006
83 71,425,242 142,850,290
X 277,380,506 321,157,523
2,466,752,177 2684,612,816
2,506,553,781 2.764,570,561
(1,251,943,054) (742,655,283)
{17,689,596) (40,156,141)
1,236,921,131 1,981,759,137

instalments payable at
the start of each
quarter beginning from
September 2021

8 Long term finances - secured
Al Baraka Bank Linuved - Dinsinishing Modarabe
Sindh Modaraba - Dissnicling Modirabe
Mark-up bearing finance ventional bank:
National Bank of Pakistan - Sywdicated ferm finance
The Bank of Punijab - Term finana
Pak Oman Investment Company Limiced - Tenm finaner
Samba Bank Limited - Tormw fnance
Allied Bank Limited
Less: Current portion of non-current liabilities
Conventional banks
Islamic banks
Sanctioned Tenure and basis of Mark-up as per
Limit (Rs.) principal repayment Agreement
8.1 GO000000 60 equal instalments 6 Monch KIBOR
pavable ar the end of plus 350 bps
cach month bepnning
from January (4, 29
B2 2AD000000 16 equal mstalmenss 3 Month KIBOR
payable ar the end of plus 200 bps
each quarter beginning
from June 29, 2019.
Installments were
deferred from  January
01, 2020 o December
31,2020,
8.3 0000000 10 equal  quarterdy 3 Month KIBOR

plus 250 bps

Security

Title documents of the assets are exclusively in the mame of Sindh
Modaraba for the entire tenor of the facility.

This loan s secured by way of first pari passu hvpothecation charge
over all present and future moveable fixed assets and mortgage over
land and building and any other immovable property of the
Company (Unit 1, [T & III) for an amount of Rs, 3,200 million with
25% margin over the faglity amount, respectively.

The loan is also secured by ways of assignment of all insurances as
co-loss pavee or assignee, lien on project accounts and personal
guarantees of all Sponsors [/ Directors along with all net worth
statements. The lenders have subordinated the repayment of any
debis or finance facilities availed from the Sponsors and Directors
till the ennre liabilites of the Company towards the syndicate are
repaid.

This loan & secured by wiy of ranking charge and 15t par pisse
charge of Rs, 2000 Million each, over all present and future current
assets of the Company and Ist pan passe charge of Rs, 400 Million
over all present and Future fixed assers of Distillery Unit -1l (Land,
building and Plant & machinery), respectively and personal
guarantee of afl Directors of the Company.

8.4 This presents following loans obuined from Pak Oman Investment Company Limited.

8.4.1 000,000 12 equal  instalments
payable at the end of
cach quarter beginning
from July 27, 2018

B.4.2 220000000 14 equal instalments

payable at the end of
each quarter beginning
an April 08, 2021

6 Month KIBOR
|11u5 250 |)ps

5.00M%

This loan is secured by way of 1st pari passu charge of Rs. 400
Million over fised assets incleding land, building, plane and
machinery located at Unie IT1, with 25% muargin over the facility
atnount and personal guarantee of all Directors of the Company.

This subsidized loan s obtained under the long tenm Anancing
facility scheme provided by SBP to finance import of brand new
machinery. This loan is secured by way of pari passus charge over
fixed assers located at Unse-lII in Muzaffargarh including land
building, plant and machinery of the company with a 25% margin
(amounting to Rs. 294 mullion) and personal guarantees of all
Directors of the Company.
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8.5 250,000,000 14 equal instalments 3 Month KIBOR  This loan is secured by way of joint parl passu charge over fixed
payable at the end of plus 250 bps asscts locared at Unit-111 in Muzaffargarh amounting to Rs. 334
each quarter beginning million. and personal guarantees of all Directors of the Company.

on April 01, 2019

B.6 400000000 8 equal  quarterly  SBP base rate plus  The Company has obtained borrowing under Refinance Scheme for
instalments payable at 30 bps payment of Wages & Salanies by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) at
the start of each subsidized rate in six tranches on wanous dates. Fair value
quarter beginning from acjustment has been measured as difference between subsidized rate
Febraary 11, 2021 L., 0% KIBOR plas 300 bps per annum and prevailing market rate

and same has been recognized as Government grant in accordance
with IAS 20 “Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure
of Government Assistance”™ (sec note 11 to these unconsolidated
financial statements) and is being amortized in the statement of
profit or loss, in line with the recognition of interest expense the
grant is compensating, The grant is conditional subject to fulfillment
of certain conditions as defined in the SBP Refinance Scheme. The
loan is secured by way of Ist pari passu charge over fixed assets
inclading land, building, plant and machinery located ar Unit 111,
with 25% margin over the facility amount and personal guarantee of
all Directors of the Company.

2021 2020
9 Lease liability Nage Rupees Rupees

Lease liability 2t 433,233,707 638,559,332
Less: Current portion (195,833,340) (202,868,007
Closing balance 237,400,367 435,691,325
91 Opening balance 738,559,332 662,593 081
Add: Assets acquired during the year - 254,543,000
638,559,332 917,136,090
Less: Pavments / adjustments (205,325,625) (278,576,758)
433,233,707 638,559,332
Less: Current portion (195,833,340) (202,868,007
Closing balance 237,400,367 435,691,325

9.11  The principal payment due under the lease agreements ageregare 1o Rs, 433.2 million (2020: Rs. 638.6 million) and are payvable in monthly
instalments under various agreements, latest by September 2023, The preseat values of misimum Jease payments have been discounted at
interest rate implicit in the lease, which ranges from 9.4%% o 17,06% per annum (2020: 9.49% o 18409 per annum), Al bease agreements
carry rencwal option at the end of lease period, however, the Company intends to exercise its option to purchase the leased assets upon
completion of the respective lease terms, There are no financial restrictions imposed by lessors and the taxes, repairs, replacements and

insurance costs are bome by the lessee.

9.2 2021
Future - Present
g Finance
minimum value of futare
cost for future 3
lease : minimum lease
periods
payments payments
Particulars Nett#e = ssesmssseswsssssss RU‘PEES - Lre——
Not later than one year 13 218,334,272 22,500,932 195,833,340
Later than one year and not later 379,550 6,979,183 400,367
than five years
462,713,822 29,480,115 433,233,707
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10

10.1

10.1.1

10.1.2

10.1.3

Partunlars

Nat luter than one year
Later than one vear and not later

than five years

Sufient featares of the leases are a5 follows:

Diseount factor (Vo)
Term of lease (veats)

Securnty deposits (%0)

Deferred liabilities

Staff retirement benefits - Gorubedly

Deeferred taxation

Stafl retirement benefits - Gratuity

2020
Future i Present
3 Finance e
minimum . value of future
i cost for future H
lease 3 minimum kasc
) periods
N payments payments
................ R\JPL(‘
13 245,979,770 43,111,763 202,868,007

-’-fll’l_l:!:‘l 2]

30,560,771

435,691,325

712,231 866

738,559,332

Nate

oy
fo.z

2021 2020
949 -17.06 0,49 . 18,40
5-5 3-5
10 - 30 10- 30
2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
657,248,153 $64, 706,962
657,248,153 564,706,862

The latest actuarial valeanon of the Company's defined benefit plan was conducted at Seprember 3, 2021 usiag Projected Unit Credie Method. Detul

of obligation for defined benetie plan is as follows;

Present value of defined benefit abligation

Liability as at 30 September

Movement in defined benefit obligation

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 01 October

Current service cost for the year
Interest cost For the yeir

Benefits paid during the year

Acmuarial (gain) on present value of defined beacfit obliganon

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 30 September

Changes in actuarial gains

Opening actuanal gain

Actuarial gain during the vear

Chispe to other comprehensive income
Unrecognized actuarial gains
Charge for the year
Statement of Profit or Loss

Current service cost

Interest cost for the year

Net amount chatgeable 1o profit and loss acoount

Starement of Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial =:p;:\'lr7',| on defined benefir |1|,13.'tp‘:uiun

: 2021 2020
Note
Rupees Rupees
.11 657,248,153 S04, 006,862
657,248,153 564,706,862
2021 2020
Nowe Rupees Rupees
564,706,662 50H8,436,982
013 57,556,163 55,150,654
1.3 43,683,453 32403015
(4,731,938) (4,426,502)
1.2 (3,966,387) (46,857 287)
657,248,153 564,706,562
2021 2020
Note Rupees Ruapees
3,966,387 46,857,287
10.1.3 (3,966,387) (46,857 287)
57,556,163 35,1 541,654
43,683,453 52,405,015
101,239,616 107,553,669
(3,966,387) (46,857,287)
97,273,229 60,696,582
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2021 2020 219 2018 ant
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Historical Inf 4
Present value of defined 657,248,153 564,706,862 508,436,982 414,693,881 J10,560,559
benefit obligations
Expenence adjustment (3,966,387) (46,857 287} 10,136,137 42,824,778 26,243,582
arsing on plan liabihity
(Gain) [ Josss
10.1.4 Assumptions used for valuation of defined benefit schemes 2021 20210
Diseount rate used for interest cost 9.75% 12,5000
Discount rate used for year end obligation 10.50% 9.75%
Expected rates of salary increase in future 9.50% B.75%
Expeeted morality eate SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005

Setback 1 Year Setback 1 Year
Withdrawal Rates Age-Based Age-Based
Retirement age 6l vears 60 vears

10.1.5 Expected expense for next year
The cxpu:t::d ;,{f:nuirg.' expense for the year eruhug 1 Scpta:nﬁwr ), 2022 s estmated at Ry, 1029 million,
10.1.6 The Plan exposes the Company to sctuarial fisks such as:
Salary risks
The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is grearer than what is assumed. Since the benefit is caloulated on the final salary
(which will closely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic factors), the benefit amount increases as salary increases,

Mortality / withdrawal risks
There is also a potensial risk that the acneal morsliny [/ withdeawal rates are different.

10.1.7 Grataity scheme entitles the members to gratuity upon resignation, teemination, early retirement, retrenchment, deach and dismissal. Gratuity is
based on the last month's basie salary For each year of service,

10.1.8 The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 4 years,

10.1.9 Sensitivity analysis

If the significanit acruarial assumptions used to ¢stmate the defined benefit obligation m the reporting date, had flucruated by 100 bps with all
other vartables held consuar, the IMPact on preseat value of the defined benefit obligation as ar 3 ‘_\'t?tn:mbct M2l would have been as
follow:

p. 14| 2020

Gratuity

Impact on present value of defined
benefit obligation

Increase 100 bps  Decrease 100 bps
covsssnnces RUpeesscccavannas

[Mscount gale movemont 498,661,451
544,653,613

Although the analvsis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of

543,889,670
N4, 132

Salary growth rare

the sensitivity of the assumprions shown,

N 221 200

Nose

102 Deferred taxation Rupees Rupees
Dieferred tax bability as at September 30, 2021 on taxable remporary differences
arising i respect of

Asederaated fx deproviasion su epwrating fxoed asets 1L,931,177,747 1,858,191,357

 Laoused arsedy - pet 196,383,301 169,453,176
Deferred rax asset as ar Seprember 30, 2021 on deductible temporary differences
arisng m respect of
- Unatsed foxc Jogses and fase envadits 16022 (1,972,543,470) (1,915,464,795)
= Niaff resivemens benefits (144,056,963) (112,061,612)
- Proision for Warker's Profit Pasticipation Fand {10,960,613) (11B,326)
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2021 2020
10.2.1 Mo in defy d tax bal is as follows: Rupees Rupees

As at 01 Ocrober =
Recognized in Starement of Profit or Loss:

Acceherated tax depreciation on operating fixed assets 72,986,190 188,147,428
- Leased assets - aed 26,930,125 53,922,390
- Unusged tax losses and tax credits {57.078,675) {249 859 850
- Seaff revirement benefins (32,564,714) {20,006, 110H
- Provision for Worker's Profit Pamicipacion Fusnsd (10,842,287) 17,656,319

(369,361) (10,139,823

Recognized in Statement of Other Comprebensive Income:

- Seaff retirement benefirs §69,361 10,139823

10.2.2 As at 30 Seprember 2021 deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 2000.1 million (2020: Rs. 483,82 million) on unused tax losses angd minimum tax
creddit 1S5 113 has noe been r\-rn’__i_ni?-:-d in these financial statements as sufficient mxable profits are nop expected o be pnrha'hk— aginse which
the Company can wse benefits therefrom. Management ss of the view that recognition of deferred tax asser shall be re-assessed on 30 September

2022, Tax bosses amounting to Rs. 575,954 million will expare in tax year 2022

1n Deferred income - Government grant 2021 2020
Nate Rupees Rupess
Deferred income - Govemment grant §.6 %
Opening balance - -
Recognized during the year 34485454 -
Grant amortized during the year (23,2003,871) -
Closing balance 11,281,583 -
Less: cumrent portion shown under current labilities (10,459,335) -
822,248
12 Short term borrowings - secured
Interest rate 2021 2020
Banking & Financial Instinutions Y Rupees Rupees
Mawk-p dasvd horrmpingy fiom vvestional anks-reaimd
Cash Anance 9.5-11.59 4448 314,022 1,538,953 800
Running finance 10.66 - 10,78 99,502,155 99,502 155
Export re-finance/ FAPC 3.00/20.13 4,210,253,002 4,522 200,002
8.758,069,179 6.160,656.056

121 The Company has availed shore term barmwing facibities from vanous commercigl banks under mark-up arrangements having ageregate sancrioned
limits of Ra. 13,025 mallion (2020: Rs, 11400 mullicn). These facilitles are seeured through pledpe of stock-in-trade, Hen on debrors, charge over the
present and furare current and fived assets, len on export documents and persomal guarantees of the sponsoring Diroctors as well as subordination of
loan from Disectors. The oustanding borrowing pledged againse stock-in-made amount wo Rs, 5,181 amillion, (2020: Rs. 1,675 millien),

o 2021 2020
13 Current portion of non-current liabilitics Rupees Rupees

Long term finances - Consvintional S A 1,251,943,054 742,655,283
Long term finances - Lol for & 17,689,596 40,156,141
Lense hability 9 195,833,340 202,868,007
Dieferred grant 1 10,459,335

1,475,925,325 085,67% 431

22 2020
Nt
14 Trade and other payables Rupcees Rupees

Trade and other creditors 504,969,404 632,315,546
Creditors for capital expenditare 2,022,733,316 1 443 904 553
Advances from castomers - local fi.7 696,901,198 221,320,387
Retenson moaey pavable 9,505,734 100,396,676
Federal Excse Duty and Sales Tax payable 192,039,304 282,148
Income Tax deducted at souree 57,459,380 68,006,613
Withholding Sales Tax payable 7,904,704 5974.179
Workess' Profis Participation Fund 14.2 50,006,909 546,800
Accrued ligbilities 71,204,100 67,753,039
Orher liabilitdes 389,856,195 256,770,973

4,002,580,744 2, 708,079,894
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141 This includes Rs. 138,13 mallion eeceived from Teading Corporation of Pakistan ("TCP") against sale of sugar. In the year 2009 the Food

Direcrorate of the Government, in conjunction with the law enforcement agencies lifted and sold TCP sugar stocks, despite protest from the
Company,
Thix lifting of the supar stocks by Government consttuted an event of force majeure snder cliuse 12 of terms of tenders and the tenders
would, therefore, be discharged due to frustration of the contract. Accordingly, the management, based on the legal opanion, is of the view that
the Company after the event of force majeure is not required to make delivery of sugar w TCP and no penalties or incidental charges will arise
an non-performance of the contrce. Further, the Company agreed to settle the remaining amount to TCP subject w reconciliation of quantiey
forcibly lifted by TCP which to-date i pending.

2021 2020
14.2 Workers' Profit Participation Fund Rupees Rupees
Bulance as at 01 Ogober 546,800 B8.451,507
Provision for the year 49,403,398 546,800
Mark-up on Workers' Profit Participation Fund 56,211
Paymenss made during the year - (H8,431,507)
50,006,909 546,800
2021 2020
15 Mark-up accrucd Rupces Rupees
Mark-up on horrouings fium concentional bandes:
Long term loans - seced 54,371,431 51,778,337
Short term borrowings - ey 183,312,638 86,643,160
237,684,064 138,425,497
Restal pm Infanwic mvode of fasamcng:
Short term borrowings - severed - -
237,684,069 138,423,497
Nose 2021 200201
16 Provision for taxation Rupees Rupees
Balance ar beginning of the year 576,625,525 27381920
Add: Provision for the year 32 321,862,481 302,806,294
898,488,006 576,623,525
Less: Adjustmenss (576,625,525)
Balance at the end of the vear 321,862,481 576,625,525

17 Contingencies and commitments
171 Comtingencies

17.1.1 The Government of Punjab under the powers conferred through the Punjab Excise Act, 1914 levied a charge of Rs, 2 per liter on
munufacturing of spieit (Bthanol) on 03 July 2012, The management fled Writ Petitions no. 18347/2012 and 33334,/ 2014 against the
above levy m the Honomble lahore High Coust ("the Cownt"). The Court, vide order dated 15 July 20016, dismissed the
aforementioned Wit Peanons,
Thereafier, the Company filed an Inom Court Appeal No, 1219/2016, of the same title, against the aforementoned order of the Courr,
This Intea Court Appeal was dismissed vide onder dated 10 Ogrober 2017 on the techaical ground of smainminabilicy. The Court stated
in the aforementioned order that the remedy of Intra Court Appeal did aot Tie against the Onder dated 15 July 2016, and, therefore,
dismissed the appeal. However, an Honorable Division Beénch of the Court vide Order dated 10 August 2006, direeted the Company
along with other pettioners to deposit the excse duty payable under the mpugmed sotification with the Deputy Regpstrar (Judicial),
[ahore High Court, and restruned the respondents from collecting the same from the Company. The same intenim otder holds the
field nll dare. Till date the Company has deposited Ry, 291 million with the Depured Registrar {Judicial), Lahare High Coure which is
disclosed in the financial starements,
The Company then filed CPLA N, 4330/ 2017 against the Order dared 10 Ocwober 2017, The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistn
has set aside the Owder dated 10 Ocwober 2007, and remanded the maner back 1o the Conirt for decision on menits vide order dared 20
November 2017, However, no dare for heanng has been fixed ull date against the above mentoned order,
Based on the opinion of the Company's legal counsel, the management i= confident of favorable outcome regasding, dhis case, hence,
no provision has been recognized in these financial sratements.

1712 Commissioner (Appeals) vide order Daved 20/05/2015 deleted the additon made by the officer inland revenue (OIR). Tax impact of
the same is Rs. 1,506,859/, The appeal cffect of the order of CIR (A) was given vide order dated 29-06-2016. However being

aggrieved with the order of CIR (A), department has filed appeal before ATIR, The appeal has been heard on 06-04-2022 and decision

is awantied
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17.1.3 Markup on shore & Jong rerm loans has been disallowed agrainst the Jocal sales and allocated o distillery unit, Resultinely Joss of the
company has been decreased by Rs. _’F‘F."_'}!_'f“fuﬁ_'l"qxpa!-ur bq:mg agprieved filed an ;!.pp»_-al before CIR .\p-ppzls_ The same has been
decided in favour of the department. Further, the tixpayer being agurieved has filed Appeal before ATIR, which was heard on (88-04-
2021 and passed order having ITA no, 2491 & 2132/LB/2013 dated 1-06-2021 by dirccting the department to re-assess the case. Re

assessment procecdings are awmted.

1744 Tax Credit u/s 65B amounting t©0 Rs. 2,505,506/ on plant and machinery has been disallowed by the learned DCIR. Taxpayer being
aggrieved fled an appeal before CIR Appeals. The same has decided in favour of the taxpayer. Further, the department has filed
Appeal before ATIR, which was heard on (8-04-2021 and passed order having ITA no. 2491 & 2132/LB/2013 dated 1-06-2021
wherehy the decision of CIR (A) was upheld by ATIR,

17.1.5 The Leamned DUCIR started proceedings w/s 177 and made additions wnder various beads amounting to R, 664275802/~ through
order ufs 12201) dated 12-12.2017, Resultunty loss of the company has been decreased by the same amount. The mxpayer filed an
appeal before CIR (A) against the said addigons which was decided vide order no. 18-A/V dated 09-02-2021. The same has been
decided in the favor of dc]y:]rlrrw-n[. Furthermore; the taxpayer Ixeing aggricved has filed Appeal before ATIR on 07-04-2021, Hearting
af the same is stll pending,

1716 The learmed ACIR inisiated procesdings u/s B(1) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990, The ACIR disallowed the inpue tax of Ry, 1,730,245/ on
secount of claim m violton of seetion 8 and imposed penalty of Rs. 86,512/ wide order beanng no. & Nel'TO/Eaf
16/ST/8(1) /19585 dated 14-05-2022. The Registered Person (RP) being agggrieved has filed an appenl before CIR (A) on 17-06-2022
against said order which is pending for adjudication,

1707 The learned DCIR initiated proceedings u/s 11(1)/26(11 of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 where be imposed penaley of Ra. 156,660,696/ -
ufs 33 on account of late filing of sales tx returas along with default surcharge of Rs, 28,768,046,/ u/s 34(1) vide order bearing no,
C.No. LTO/Enf-16/ST/26(1)/ 19465 dated 12-05.2022. The RP being agpricved has filed an appeal before CIR (A) on 14-06-2022
agminst the said order which is pending for adjudication.

1718 The learned ACIR initiated proceedings u/s T3(4) of the Sales Tax Acy, 1990, The leamed ACIR disaliowedd the input tax of Rs.
1,794,672 u/s 73(4) on account of Supphies to anregistered persons through ender beanng no. C.No LTC YWEf16/5T /73 (4)/ 18359

dated 22-04-2022, The RP being aggrieved has filed an appeat before CIR [(A) on 24-05-2022 agminst the said order which is pending
fior adjudication,

1719 The learned DCIR initiated procecdings u/s 8(1) of the Sales Tax Act, 199 where he disallowed mpur wx of Rs. 14,384.754/- on
sccount of claim in violation of section 8 vide order bearing no. CNa LTO/ST/E&C-16/DRRA/2020/-2021 /5273 dated 15-09-
2021. The RP fled an appeal before CIR (A) which was heand on 16-02-2022 in which the kearned CIR [(A) has sot aside the
procesding with the direction that re-assessment of case has o be made vide order bearing no. 09/ AV dared 04-03-2022,

17.L.10 The Leamed DCIR issued Show cause norce (SCN) dated 21.05-2021 wherein DCIR has confronted the difference in sales and bank
credits amountng o Rs. 24,806 408,432/ -,
The said SCN was challenged in High Court who was granted sty in 1CA No.3964%/2021dated 22-06-2021. However, the learned
DBCIR issued arder which was served on 22.06. 2021,
However, DCIR was not awate of stay issued onder m wlueh the addition made of Rs. 22,807,630.561 /- and created demand of
K4 6,560,328,513/- The sud demand staved while High Court (HC) vidle ordes dated 04-11-2021 in the €M ao. 4/2021,
The mxpayer filed an appeal before CIR (A) aganst the said demand in which CIR (A) stared thar the decision of CIR (A) remains
rehant on final decision of High court vide order barcode no. 1000001 15208904 dared 23-12-2021. Furthermore; the taxpaver being
apprieved his filed Appeal before Appellare Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the said order of Leamed CIR (A) on 31-01-2022
which is pending adjudicagion.
The above proceedings are pending before Lahore High Court and ATIR simubtaneously and sy against Recovery of demane is
granted by High Court,

17.1.11 he learned DCIR initated proceedings u/s 33(5) and 33(1) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 where be imposed penalty of Rs. 1257357/~ on
account of lare ﬁllng of sales tax retum vide order hranng no. CNo L'TU/ST/B&C-16,/Min/Tandlianvwala/ 2021 /5053 dated (-09-
2021. The RP fled an appeal before CIR (A) which was heard on 15-10-2021 in which the kearned CIR (A) confiemed the order of
DCIR vide order bearing no. 08/A/V dated 04-03-2022 The RP being aggrieved filed an appeal before Honorable ATIR on (11-04-
2022, which is pending for Heanng,

17.2 Commitments

17.2.1 Commimments in respect of imports contracted but not incurred at year end amounted o approximarely Rs, Nil (2020; Rs, Nif).

17.2.2 The Company has given a bank guarantee with 100% cash margin of Rs, 2 million (2020 Rs. 2 million) o the Excise and Taxation
Department for the expuort of Ethanol in relation to contingency as discussed in note 17.1.1,

17.2.3 The Company has certain ljarah facilines which have been classified as operating lease in the financial statements as required by
the lstamic Financial Accounung Standard 2 (IFAS 2) issued by the Instmure of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. The amount
of Tjarah rentals paid during the vear has been charged as an expense during the year.

The commitments of future payments under operating leases/ljarah Bnancing and finance lease comeacts and the period in which

these payments will become due are as follows:

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Naoit larer than one vear 26,387,126 31,309,188
Later than one vear and not laser than five vears 10,905,363 43,630,203
37,292,489 74,939,391
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2021 2120
18.2 Capital work in progress Rupecs Rupees
Owned
Civil works 50,603,822 49,681,649
Plant and machincry 3,106,740 3,106,740
Others 1,782,984 1,782,984
55,495,546 34,371,373
18,21 Movement in the accounts is as follows;
Opening balance 25 at 01 October 54,571.373 54571373
Additians made dwiigg the year:
Civil works
Plant and machinery -
Electric equipment .
Orthers 924,173
924,173
Capitalized duriwg the year:
Advances
Cival works -
Plant and machinery
Electric equipment
Orthers R
Closing balance as at 30 September 55,495,546 545371373
2021 2020
Nate
19 Long term deposits Rupees Rupees
Depasits against leased assers 94,985,201 156,341,511
Cithers 9.1 79,668,628 68029408
174,653,829 224 370,919

19.1 These mainly comprise of security margins of Rs. 50 million (2020: Rs. 30 million) deposited against new long term financing facilities,

2021 2020
20 Stores, spare parts and loose tools Rupees Rupees
Stores and spare parts 1,088,892,294 1,067,736,527
Oil and lubricants 35,759,890 3,520,192

1,124,652,184 1,099.236,719

2021 2020
21 Stock-in-trade Rupees Rupees
Raw materials 1,738,154,556 1,108,733, 144
Finished goods 4,522,789,399 1,275,704,150

6,260,943,955 2384 437 294

22 Trade debis-considered goods
These include amount due from Lotte Akhtar Beverages (Pvt.) Limited, an associated company, against the sale of Top Gas amounting to Rs,
330 million (2020: Rs. 3.01 million) in the normal course of business and is over due by less than 180 days. Maximum aggregare cutstanding

balance at any ime during the vear amounts to Rs. 6,057,279 (2020: Rs. 4,377 862).
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s 2021 2020
23 Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables ot Rupees Rupees

Advances to SUgar cane growers - mredired, considered good 883,072,537 426,848,207
Advances to suppliers and contractors - wnsecired, considered good 234 1,499,048,464 877,783,418
Advances to staff - wasecsred, considered good:

- against expenses 1,886,609 3,120,533

- against salaries 232 1,579,707 1,557,392
Lease and other deposits 41,919,211 32,702,441
Advances against Letter of Credits - seannd - 666,777
Prepayments 12,544,148 11,174,526
Inland export subsidy 23.3 133,187,750 133,187,750
Export support o sugar 234 586,491,010 386,491,010
Deposits with the Deputy Registrar (Judicial), Lahore High Court 291,220,809 290,948,084
Other receivables 235 37,497,705

3,488,447,950

23.1 'This represents unsecured interest free advances to contractors and suppliers for normal repair and maintenance.
23.2  This includes amount receivable from executives of the Company, amoundng to Rs, 1L83 million (2020: Rs, 0.61 million), respectively.

23.3 This represents inland export subsidy provided to exporters of sugar in the year 2013 and 2014 at the rate of Rs. 1.75 and Rs, 1.00 per kg of
sugar exported through SRO 7(2)/2012-E-1T (Vol-1V) dated September 30, 2013,

23.4 This represents export support on sugar provided to exporters during the financial year 2017-18 with inland freight support amounting to Rs,
553 million at Rs. 10.7 per kg pursuant to Letter No. F. No. 7(2)/2012-Exp 11 issued by the Ministry of Commerce under directions of

Government of Pakistan dated October (003, 2017,

23.5 'This includes amount receivable from Superior Textile Mills Limited, an associated company, amounting to Rs. 30 million (2020: Nil),

respectively. The maximum aggregate amount outstanding at any time during the year amounts to Rs. 30 million (2020: Nil).

. 2021 2020
24 Cash and bank balances ot Rupees Rupees
Cash in hand 1,644,415 2,313,882
Cash ar bank
- CHTTERE GECOURES 75,903,601 173,562,294
- SAVING ACCOunes 4.1 24,200,463 107,788,449
100,104,064 281,3700,743
101,748,479 283,684,625

241 The balances in saving accounts carry mark-up ranging from 5.6% to 6.4% per annum (2020: 5.50% to 12.00% per annum),

Note 2021 2020
25 Sales - net Rupees Rupecs
Lol
Sugar 23,661,315,232 20,906,467,341
Ethanol 157,770,645 182,225,785
Top Gas & others 25.1 203,186,027 63,058,330
24,022,271,904 21,151,751,456
Export:
Sugar 252 - 175,726,106
Eithanol 6,621,189,064 3,078,669,208
6,621,189,064 3,254 395,314
30,643,460,968 24,406,146,770
Less:
Sales tax (3,529,056,760) (3.134,262.037)

27,114,404,208 21,271,884,733

25.1 These include sale to Lotre Akhtar Beverages (Pvt.) Limited, an associated company, of Top Gas amounting to Rs. 35.48 million (2020: Rs. 15.83
million).
25.2  There was no export of sugar in the cureent year,

25.3 The amount of Rs 63190 million included in contract liabilities at 30 September, 2020 has been recognised as revenue in 2021 (2020: Rs. 54%.145 million).
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N nn 2020
26 Cost of sales Rupees Rupees
R material consumed 25,361,802,600 16,438,533.526
Salaries, wajes and other benefies 280 610,443 498 SHU.R21 244
Depreciation T&L7 BO7,450,712 H03013,634
Seores and spare parts consumed 581,356,592 395.530,7¢
Ful and power 181,504,689 169,479,710
Reguir and maintenance 195,945 002 273,723,233
Vehicle ranning expenses 21,902,653 M2IR9TT
Insurance 43,380,955 36,437,230
liarah rentals 48,964,295 51,061 383
Orther expenses 19,164,376 15,310,557
27.871,915.372 18,793, 140,263
A Chpresing shoick
- Raw mvarcrial 1LI0B, 733,144 425,230,201
- Findshed goods 1,278,704,150 2,597 006, 276
M0, 256,352,660 21,815,342, 740
Laws: Clasing stk
Raw matenal Fi (1,738,154,556) (1,108,733, 144)
Finished o ks 21 (‘,52‘2.73‘],3”} (1,275,704,1 3 )
23,995, 408,711 19,430,945 44406

26.1 Salarics, wages and other benefies inciude Ry, 80.99 miflion (2020; Ra. 6737 million) in respect of staff recirement benefios,

Nty 22 21200
-1} Administrative expenses Rupees Rupees

Salaries, wages and other benetits 271 318,043,903 330910697
Rent, rates anc taxes 3,955,089 B 62085
Depreciation 17,7 20,729,176 20234315
Utifithes expenses 2,587,743 2617371
Printriing and stationery 10,500,518 9,778,788
Insurince 3,066,298 L9985
Postage, telephone and welegrams 10,278,974 H.934.253
Repalr and maintenance 5,659,022 667768
Travelling and convevance 81,811,670 75,169,625
Subscription, books and perindicals 14,615 885 9,612,839
lLegral and professional chasges 29,742,042 12,171,315
Aunditad’s remunerarion 272 4,086,200 4065, 200
Estertaimment 16,684,535 1 2.6896,920
Onher expenses 24,354 305 28, 504,951

546,115,160 532,383,857

271 Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs. 20.25 million (2020: Ra. 40.1 million) in respect of staff retrement benefies.

20 200200
27.2 Auditor's remuneration Rupees Rupees
Audit fee 2,691,000 2681 0000
Half searly reviea 1,395,200 1,395,200
4,086,200 A, (0BG, 2000
20 2020
e = Nty
28 Distriburion expenses Rupees Rupess
Hindling and distributon 118,294,425 108,250,907
Transpormtion 156,002,128 167027 236
Sugmr stacking chargres 35,906,826 111877
{Mhers 281 12,346,676 5
323 530,055
281 This inchades salaries paid ro Excise Deparment staff presear at the (‘.rml'l'l,'k’ﬂ"» premises o manitor the distribarion of Erhanal
. 2021 2000
Nave
29 Orther income Rupees Rupees
Income from financial assets
Profit on saving scoounts 9,571,517 62,164,784
Incame from non=Gnancil dssets
Goain on disposal of property, phant and eqguipiment w2 66,398
Foreign exchange gain 45,493,114 35,402,132
Miscellancous income 9,171,795 1626005
Amormeation of deferred income 23203871
B7,506,695 97,729,521
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2021 0200
30 Finance cost Rupees Rupees
Mark-ap dased fowns fre conentional bipsks
- Long term loans - secured 265,784,920 350,366 539
« Short term borrowings - ewrd 869,155,588 602,573,326
Matkup on leise liability 42,741,741 (67,619,976
1,177,682,249 1,120,561 841
- Long term finanices - srowed 7,386,052 16,417 249
- Short rerm borrowings - sasad -
7,386,052 16,417 249
Bank charges 2,623,521 2,347,140
Ohther charges 54,187,793 25,811,119
56,811,314 27,348,259
1,241,879,615 1,064,327 349
Note 2021 2000
3 Other expenses Rupees Rupees
Donatoas it 13258397 15933314
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment etz - 6,498
Workers' Profir Participation Fund 4.2 49,403 598 546,800
Mask-up on Workers' Profic Participation Fund 56,211 -
62,718,506 17,588,612

311 During the year, the Campany has paid donation to Institute For Poliey Reforms situneed ae 4 - Shami Road Lahore Cantt, Pakistan in which Mr.
Alkbar Khan is 2 Director. None of other Directors of the Company or their spouses have any interest in, or are otherwise associated with the reapient
of donation.

: 2021 20200
Node
k 74 Taxation Rupecs Rupees
lnwome tax
Carrent fax: Jrrerils 321,862,481 302,806,294
Deeferred tax 16.2.1 (B69.361) {10,139,823)
320,993,120 202 606,471

321 Tax Charge Reconciliation
Thete is no relasonship between tax expense and aecounning profit as the provisson for cusfent taxation is based on rwenover wx and fnal tax sespectively,
therefore no numerical reconciliation has been presented.

322 In view of available tax losses, the provision for current tax amounting to R, 32099 million includes tax under Tinal Tax Regime' (FTR) and
Minimsiam Tax on mmover u/s 113, of the Income Tax Ordinanee, 2000, Minimum tax 8 avalable for ses off for five VERAIS AAinst any normal tax
liahilities ansing in future years
Tax vnder "Final Tax Regime' represents tax on export of Sugar and Ethanol which is treated as @ full and final discharge of tax Hability u/s 154 of
lncome Tax Ordinance, 2001, Current rax includes tax under FTR of Rs. 65,6 million (2020: Rs. 325 million).

32.3 Certun other rax cases not invalving marerial amounts are pending against the Company against which the Company expects favorable outcomes and,

hence, have not been provided for in these accounis,

B Earnings per share

33.1 Earnings per share - basic and diluted 2021 2020
Profie [ (loss) after vaxation Rupees 712,245,736 (2B1,725,246)
Weighted averape number of ordinary shares Na. of shares 117,706,300 117,706,500
Basic earnings per share Rupees 6005 (2.3

332 ‘There is no diluton effect on the basic carnings per share as the Company does not have any convertible instruments in issue 28 at 30 Seprember 2021,

Nt 2021 2020
i el
M Cash and cash equivalents Rupees Rupees
Cash and bank balances M 101,748,479 283,684,625
Short term hosrowings - running fnance 2 (99,502,155) (99,502,133
2,246,324 184,182,470
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3 Financial risk management
The Company s exposed o the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

1 Credit risk
Liquidity risk

[V ]

3 Market risk

This presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s objectives, policies and

processes for measuring and managing nisk, and the Company’s management of capital,
351 Risk management framework

The Board of Dircctors have overall responsibility for establishment and over-sight of the Company's risk management
framework, The executive management team s responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management
policics. The team regularly meets and any changes and compliance issues are reported to the Board of Directors through the
Audir Committee.

The Company’s risk management policies arc established o identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor fsks and adherence to limits, Risk management policies and systems are
reviewed regulary to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its eraining and
management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all
employees understand their roles and obligations,

The Company's Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management
policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the nisk management framework in relaton to the nsks faced by the
Company. Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit department. Internal audit department undertakes
both regular and ad hoe reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit
Committee.

35.2 Credit risk
Credit sk is the sk of financial loss o the Company if a customer or counterparty to a finandal instrument fails o meet its
contractual obligadons. To manage credit risk the Company maintains procedures covering the application for credit approvals,
granting and renewal of counterparty limits and monitoring of exposures against these limits. As part of these processes the
financial viability of all counterparties is regularly monitored and assessed.
¥ f it
The carrving amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure before any credit enhancements, The

maximum £Xposure 10 credit sk ar the n:p()nin_u date 1s;

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Long term deposits 79,668,628 68,029 408
Trade debis - sansidered gond 14,243,716 5,808,788
::i‘;; .a.(llc(:*i j;‘l;n:\:lts \::i }:::::q receivables excluding deposit 1,041,119,675 1361,130,953
Bank balances 100,104,064 281,370,743
1,235,136,083 1,716,339 892
Trade debts
Trade debts at the balance sheet date are classified in Pak Rupees.
2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Export - wonred -
Local - ansecwred, considered good 14,243,716 5,808,788
14,243,716 5,808,788
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The ageing of local trade receivables at the reporting date is:

Related Parties Others Total
2021 2021 2021
Rupees Rupees Rupees
1 1o 30 days 3,367,916 - 3,367,916
31 to 90 days - 10,875,800 10,875,800
3,367,916 10,875,800 14,243,716
Related Parties Orhers Total
2020 2020 2020
Rupees Rupees Rupeces
I to 30 days 3010318 : 3010318
31 to 90 days 2, 798470 2798470
3,010,318 2798470 5,808,788

Trade debts comprise solely of local customers, including Lotte Akhrar Beverages (Pvt.) Limited, an associated company. These
include companies with very good credit history with the Company and are regular in their payments. The management
continuously monitors the repayment capacity and intention of their debtors and extends the credit peniods to their customers
according to their credit history, Furthermore, the Company has recovered major portion of its trade debts subsequent 1o the

year. Resultantly, no impairment allowance was necessary.

Bank balances

Credit risk is considered minimal since the counterpartics have reasonably high credit ratings as determined by various credit
rating agencies. Due o long standing business relationships with these counterparties and considering their strong financial
standing, management docs not expect non-performance by these counterpartics on their obligations to the Company.

Following are the credit ratings of counterparties with external eredit ratings:

Rating Rating 2021 2020
Short term Long term Agency Rupees Rupees

Al-Baraka Bank A-1 A+ PACRA 735,042 212,442
Allied Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 1,227,936 6,739,146
Askari Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 103,205 103,205
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA (4,625,671) (766,203)
Dubai Islamic Bank Al+ AA JCR-VIS 1,867,413 1,087,734
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ AA PACRA 1,035,771 22,146,569
Habib Bank Limited Al+ AAA JCR-VIS (5,837,486) (1,274.874)
KASB Bank Limited (Bank Islami) Al A+ PACRA - 405977
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 33,946,620 55,813,711
Meezan Bank Limited A1+ AAA JCR-VIS 13,228,594 38,569,551
National Bank of Pakistan Al+ AAA JCR-VIS 4,897,366 2,757,239
Samba Bank Limited A-1 AA JCR-VIS 615,447 475,028
Sindh Bank Limited Al A+ JCR-VIS 26,805,693 63,877,202
Soneti Bank Limited Al+ AA- PACRA 470,281 11,169
Summit Bank Limited Suspended JCR-VIS 80 B0
The Bank OFf Khyber Al A JCR-VIS 471,855 1,389
The Bank of Punjab Al+ AA+ PACRA 2,304,165 2,268,370
United Bank Limited A1+ AAA JCR-VIS 22,857,753 88,943,008

100,104,064 281,370,743
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35.3 Liquidity risk

35.4

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient Biquidiey to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, For this purpose the Company has sutficient running finance facilities available from vanous commercial banks o meet
its fiquidity requirements, Further, liquidity position of the Company is closely monitored through budgers, cash flow pmijections and
eomparison with actual sesults by the Board.

Exposure to liquidity risk

Following are the conemcrual maturites of the financial liabilides, including csamared interest payments:

Carrying Contractual Less than one One 10 five More than five
Amount cash flows year years years
September 30, 2021
Long term finances - seered 2,506,553,781 2,575,257,430 1,192,445,790 1,382,811,640 -
Lease liabilivies 433,233,707 462,713,822 218,334,272 244,379,550
Short term barrowings- sernd 8,738,069,179 8,758,069,179 8,758,069,179 - -
Trade and other payables 2,998,268,749 2,998,268749  2,998,268,749 = :
Mark-up accrued 237,684,069 237,684,069 237,684,069 - -
14.933,809,485  15,031,993,249  13,404,802,059 1,627,191,190 -

Carrying Amount

Contractual cash
flows

Less than one

One to five

More than five

year years years
September 30, 2020
Long term finances - sawrsd 2,764,570,561 3.,149,131,822 068,635,920 21800497 803
Lease lishibres 638,539,332 T12.231 860 245.979.770 466,252.0196
Short term borrowinge- saswnd 6,160,656 056 6160656056 6,160,656,056
Trade and other payables 2,400,749 (891 24400749001 2400, 742,001 - -
Mark-up accrued 138,423,497 136,423,497 138423497 >

12,102,958,537 12,561,192,332 9,914 442 343 2.646,749,989

The contractual cash flows rclating to the ahove financial liabilitics have been determined on the basis of mark-up rawes effective as at

September 30, 2021. The rates of mark-up have been disclosed in relevant notes to these financial statements,

Market risk

Market nisk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as forcign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Company's
income ot the value of its holdings of fimancial instruments, The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk

exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing return, Market nisk comprises of curreney nsk, interest rate risk and other price nisk.
354.1 Foreign currency risk

The Company 35 exposed to currency sk o the extent that there is 2 mismatch berween the currengies in which sales, purchases and
bank balances are denominated and the respective functional currency of the Company. The functional currency of the Company is Pak

Rupee. The currency in which these transactions are primarily denominared is US Dollars.

Exposure 1o currency risk
Thete were no financial assets or financial liabilities at year end in forcgn currendies which are subject to currency risk exposure.

Currency nisk management

Since the maximum amount gxposed o currency risk is Nil (2020: Nil), any adverse / favorable movement in the fencoonal currency
ith respect to US dollar will not have any marenial impact on the operatgonal results.
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35.4.2 Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in
market interest rates. Significant interest rate nisk exposures are primanly managed by a mix of borrowings at variable interest

rates, At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's significant interest bearing financial instruments was as

follows:
2021 2020 2021 2020
Effective rate Carrying amount
----- Percentage - - - - - me=se-== Rupees-=-==ux-
- Financial assets
Fixed :
Bank balances - raring accounts 5.6% to 6.4% 5.500% to 12.009 24,200,463 107 788,449
2021 2020 2021 2020
Effective rate Carrying amount
- Financial liabilities ====-Percentage - - - - - ===s==== Rupees -==----
g rate ins it
Long term finances - secured 5.00% to 11.45% 3.00% to 17.35% 2,506,553,781 2.764,570,561
Lease labality 9.49% to 17.06%  949% to 1840 433,233,707 638,559,332
Short term borrowings - secured 9.5% to 11.59% G.28% to 17.85% 4,547 816,177 1,638 456,054
Eixed -
Export refinance facility - reovred 3.00% to 20.13% 3.00%, 4,210,253,002 4,522 200,002

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities ar fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a

change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss account.

el aciaskibolty adiionts di fach . g

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) profit or loss for the year

by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain

constant.
2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Effect on profit - Increase 74,876,037 30,415,859
Effect on profit - Decrease (74,876,037) (50,415,859

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit / (loss) for the vear and assers [/ liabilities
of the Company.

Interest rate risk management
The Company manages interest rate risk through risk management strategies where significant changes in gap position can be
adjusted. The short term borrowings and loans & advances to the Company have variable rate pricing that is mostly dependent
on KIBOR as indicated in respective notes.

35.4.3 Other price risk
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of & financial inserument will Huctuate because of changes in

market prices (other than those ansing from interest rate risk or currency risk). The Company believes that it is not exposed to

other price risk.
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36 Capital management

The Board’s policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so a5 0 maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and o suseain
the future development of its business, The Board of Directors monitor the retum on capital employed, which the Company defines
as operating income divided by rotal capital emploved. The Board of Directors also monitor the level of dividends to ordinary
sharcholders,
The Company's objectives when managing capital are:

iy 1w safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide rewrns for

shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
{iiy to provide an adequate return to sharcholders.

The Company manages its capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk chamcteristics of the underdying
assets, In order to maintain or adjust the capital strucrure, the Company may, for example, adjust the amount of dividends paid o
sharcholders, issue new shares, or sell assets ro reduce debt. The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio -

calculated as a ranio of long erm debt 1o equiry.

* ' ) -
I'he debt-to-equity ratios as at k) September are as follows:

2021 20240
Rupees Rupees
Debt 11,697,856,667  9,363,785,949
Equity 10,561,577,254 9 846,234 492
Total 22,259,433,921  19,410,020.441
Gearing ratio 53% 49%
The Company is highly geared,
36.1 Accounting classification and fair values
September 30, 2021 Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value
through Fair valuve At Amortized
'I‘ " -
Profitor  through OCI — otal Level 1 Level2 Level 3
Loss
Financial assets
Long term deposits - - 79,668,628 79,668,628 - - -
Trade debts - considered good - - 14,243,716 14,243,716 - - .
Advances, deposits, - - 1,041,119,675 1,041,119,675 - - -
prepayments & other
receivables
Cash and bank balances . " 101,748,479 101,748,479 . . ;
- - 1,236,780,498  1,236,780,498 - - -
Financial liabilitics
Long term finances - secured - - 2,306,553,781  2,506,553,781 . = “
Lease liabilities - = 433,233,707 433,233,707 . . -
Short term borrowings - secured - - 8,758,069,179  8,758,069,179 - - .
Trade and other payables - - 2,998,268,749  2,998,268,749 - . -
Mark-up acerued - - 237,684,069 237,684,069 - - -

- - 14,933,809,485  14,933,809,485 - - .
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September 30, 2020 Carrying amount Fair value

Fair value .

Fair value At Amornzed = ; 2
through < : I'pgal Level 1 Level 2 lLevel 3
e through OCI cost
Profit or Loss

Financial assets
|Am§5 term l'lci')nsil‘s . 68,029,408 68,029 408
Trade debts - amsiderved good . - 5,808,788 5,808,788
Advances, deposits, prepavments & - - 1,361,130,953 1,361,130,953 - - -

other receivables

Cash & bank balances 281,370,743 281,370,743 >
1,716,339,892 1,716,339,892 - - -
Financial liabilities
Long term finances - secured 2,764,570,561 2,764,570,561 - . -
Lease liabilites 638,559,332 638,559,332 -
Short term borrowings - 6,1 60,656,056 6, 160,656,056 - -
Trade and other payvables 2.400,742,091 2 400,749,091 R .
Mark-up accrned 138,423,497 138,423,497 -
12,102958,557  12,102958,537 - .

The above table presents assets and liabilitics carried at fair value by waluation method, The different levels have been defined as
follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are observable for the nsset or lability, either directly (Le., as
prices) or indirectly {Le., denved from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are net based on observable marker data.
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Annual Report 2021

TANDLIANWALA SUGAR MILLS LTD.
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Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilitics

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
37.8.1 Revenues
Toml revenue for reporable segments 27,114,404,208 21,271,884, 733
Elimination of inter-segment revenue -
Consolidated revenue 27,114,404,208 21,271,884,733
37.8.2 Profit or loss before tax and other expenses
Totl profit/ (loss) for reporeable sepments 1,008,450,667 (68,399 684)
Un-allocated corporate expenses
« (Mither expienses {ﬂzﬂlﬂ,sﬁﬁ} (1 '-',"’ﬂH-.()IE]
=/ A ivove 87,506,695 97,729,521
- Taxation (320,993,120) (292.666,471)
Consolidated profit/ (loss) after tax 712,245,736 (281,725,246)
3783 Assers
Total assets for reportable segments 27,490,090,951 23,397 856,219
Elimination of inter-segment assets - -
Consolidated assers 27,490,090,951 23,397 856,219
37.8.4 Liabilities
Total liahilities for reportable segments 16,928,513,697 13,551,621.727
Elimination of inter-segment liabilines -
Consolidated labilities 16,928,513,697 13,551,621,727
Capacity and production 2021
Sugar plant Unit I Unit 11 Unit I Total
Crushing capacity (Metric tons) 1,562,500 2,004,000 2,500,000 6,062,500
based on 125 I.L\j-'s - (Season 2020-2021)
Susgrar pnniul‘cd (Metric tons) 95,118 81,679 139,872 316,669
Recovery rano 8.28% 9.29% 9.09% B.89%,
Under urilizatian of capacity is due o low production of sugar-canc,
261200
Vatsrr plant Unit 1 Unit 11 Unit 111 Toaal
Crushing capacity (Metric tony) 1,312,500 1,573,000 1,906,254 5,093,750
based on 125 days - (Season 20019-2021)
Sugar produced {Metric wons) 71,182 6E.811 119,427 265420
Recovery ratio HH6% 09.78% 0.56% 9.33%
2021 2020
Ethanol - Distillery plant 1 Based on 330 days
Rated capaciey (Liters) 41,250,000 H1.250,000
Actual production (Liters) 35,111,250 12,392,500
Ethanol - Distillery plant IT
Rared capacity (Liters) 46,200,000 42 9000000
Actual producton (Liters) 39,691,250 23,453,000
2021 2020
Top Gas - Carbondioxide plant Bascd on 300 days
Rated capacity (Metric tons) 14,400 14,400
Actual production (Metric tons) 6,617 3749

Acoaal producton (Metric tons)

The crushing capacity is enhanced on acconnt of BMR cartied cut in past years. The revised capacity is based on the technical assessment earred

out by the Company
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39 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives
The aggrregate amounts charged in the financial starements for the vear for remuneration, inchading all benefits w the Chief Executive, Directors

and Executives of the Company are as follows:

2021
Chicl Executive Dircctors Executives
e RUpees e
Managerial remunesation - 24,500,000 70,423,557
Medical alloaance - 2,480,000 17,918,521
House rent allowance - 9,920,000 26,760,952
Staff retitement benefis - 3,100,000 9,573,881
- 40,300, (430 124,676,911
Number of persons 1 2 kg
200240
Chicf Executive Directors Executives
- Rupioes
Managerial remunceation . 24,800,000 70423557
Medical allowance - 2 480 (0 17,918,521
House rene allowanee . 9,020, (K] 26,760,952
Staff retirement benefics 3,100 (M) 09.573,681
40,500, 0001 124,676,911
Number of persaons 1 2 3T

39.1 The Chicf Exccutive Officer, Direceons and Exocutives are provided with free use of Company mainrained cars,

39,2 No meeting foe was paid o Directors during the year (2020: Nil),

40 Number of employees 2021 20
Number Number

The average and wal aumber of emplovees are as follows:
Toual emplﬂyecﬁ

Average number of employees during the year 1,801 1,865

Tarzl number of emplovess as at 30 Seprember 1,694 1,907

Factory employees

Average number of emplovees during the year 1,704 1,774
Taotal number of employers as at M) September 1,596 1,811
41 Transactions with related parties

The relited parties comprise directors of the Company, kev employees, associared underakings and holding company. Dietails of mransactions

with related parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows:

2021 2020

Name of party Relationship Narure of Transactions

Rupeces Rupecs
Lotte Akhtar Beverages (Pvt.) Common directorhip Sule of Top Gas 35,476,202 15,523,525
Lirmived Receipts agminst sale of Top Gas 32,108 286 14,925,187
The Insttute for Commaon divectorship Donation 13,258,397 15935314
Palier Reforms
Superior Textile Mills Led Commaon disectorship Advance 30,000,000
Ms. Rasheeds Begram Director Guest house rent expense - 48000000

42 Ewents after the date of SOFP

There are no subseguent events occurring after the staitement of financial positon dare that will affece these financial statements,

43 Date of authorization for issue
These financial staenents weee authorized for issue on July 13, 2022 by the Board of Directors of the Company
44 General
44.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee.

44.2 Corresponding figures have been re-armanged and descriprions are amended, wherever necessary for the purpose of companison and beuner
presentation.,

Lahore
July 13, 2022 Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director




Proxy Form
Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Ltd.
33" Annual General Meeting

Folio No./CDC A/c No.

I/We of

in the district of being a member/members of Tandlianwala Sugar Mills Ltd
holding shares of Rs.10 each, hereby appoint Mr./Ms.

of a member of the Company, vide Registered Folio/CDC Afc
No. or failing him / her, as my/our proxy to vote

for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 33" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be hold at Chandni
Banquet Hall 43-N Gulberg-1ll, Lahore on Friday, August 05, 2022 at 10:00 am and at any adjournment thereof or of

any ballot to be taken in consequence thereof,

Signed this day of August, 2022
Witnesses:
1. Signature:

Name:

CNIC:

Address:

Affix Revenue
Stamp of Rupees
Five
Signature by Member(s)

2. Signature:

Name:

CNIC:

Address:
Note:

All proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company’s Registered Office not less than forty eight
(48) hours before the time fixed for holding the Annual General Meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and
witnessed as required.
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